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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good morning,

          3  and welcome. I'm Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair

          4  of the Council's Committee on Environmental

          5  Protection.

          6                 Today we're holding a hearing on

          7  Intro. 395, a local law to amend the Administrative

          8  Charter in relation to the creation and

          9  implementation of a Comprehensive Environmental

         10  Sustainability Action Plan for the City of New York.

         11                 I welcome you all, and thank you for

         12  attending our hearing on this important topic.

         13                 Intro. 395 defines environmental

         14  sustainability as a state of which human priorities

         15  of social and economic development, do not conflict

         16  with the protection and functioning of the natural

         17  environment.

         18                 The City Council, in general, and

         19  this Committee, in particular, has been at the

         20  forefront of the Environmental Sustainability Effort

         21  in this City.

         22                 For example, the Council passed

         23  nation leading legislation that will literally

         24  transform the City's massive fleet of cars, school

         25  buses, garbage trucks, into clean air vehicles.
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          2                 The Council is also our schools and

          3  offices healthier, and also creating healthy,

          4  high-quality jobs for trade workers by passing

          5  landmark legislation last year will turn 12 billion

          6  in New York City school and building construction

          7  renovation over the next ten years into certified

          8  green buildings.

          9                 Soon, each time the City purchases

         10  any kind of electronics, lighting, paper,

         11  pesticides, cleaning supplies, the City will be

         12  saving energy, reducing waste, and helping to

         13  promote recycling and reducing toxics in our

         14  environment.

         15                 This is because last year the Council

         16  passed legislation requiring the City to buy the

         17  greenest, cleanest and most-efficient products that

         18  are available on the market, and because of the

         19  Council, the City is now protecting our City's

         20  precious natural resources and remaining open

         21  spaces.

         22                 For example, last year the Council

         23  passed legislation that requires a City to develop

         24  for the first time a long term comprehensive plan

         25  for protecting Jamaica Bay.
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          2                 The Council is also making sure that

          3  the City's remaining wetlands are not lost forever.

          4  By passing legislation last year that requires the

          5  City to conduct a so-called soup to nuts inventory

          6  of its wetlands holdings, and to transfer its most

          7  important threatened wetlands to the Parks

          8  Department for the long-term protection.

          9                 Notwithstanding the Council's

         10  leadership and the great progress that has been

         11  made, there is still much more that can and should

         12  be done, to make sure the long term sustainability

         13  -- to be done to ensure the long-term

         14  sustainability of New York City's environment.

         15                 The Council and this Committee is

         16  fully committed to lead the efforts to promote the

         17  City's environmental sustainability into the future.

         18                 At the same time, however, it is also

         19  critically important for the City of New York as a

         20  whole to engage in long-term environmental planning

         21  for sustainability.

         22                 This is where Intro. 395, the bill

         23  that we're hearing today, fits in. This bill would

         24  require the City to develop an environmental

         25  sustainability action plan that includes, for the
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          2  first time, setting clear goals for the furthering

          3  of sustainability in a wide range of important

          4  areas.

          5                 Critically, the bill would require

          6  that these goals on sustainability be backed up with

          7  fully measurable indicators of progress and clearly

          8  define five, ten and 20-year sustainability

          9  commitments for each indicator.

         10                 The bill would also require the City

         11  to identify the policies and practices that will be

         12  needed to achieve each of these commitments, as well

         13  as establish a schedule for implementing them.

         14                 This bill would require both periodic

         15  reporting on the City's progress and implementing

         16  the environmental sustainability plan and updating

         17  of the plan itself.

         18                 And, finally, the bill would set up a

         19  transparent process for crafting the action plan,

         20  one that includes input from the public to help

         21  create this plan. We think this is a very good bill.

         22                 Today we're going to hear from quite

         23  a few individuals and organizations that have a deep

         24  interest in New York City's environmental

         25  sustainability.
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          2                 Also, this group includes the

          3  Bloomberg Administration, which last Thursday, as we

          4  all know, made an announcement of the creation of an

          5  office of long-term planning and sustainability and

          6  the creation of a long-term sustainability plan for

          7  the City.

          8                 This is terrific news and we're very,

          9  very heartened by it, as we know everyone in this

         10  room is.

         11                 The Bloomberg Administration also

         12  created a 16-member advisory board to take part in

         13  this undertaking. I'm happy to have been appointed

         14  to that, and the Speaker is also on that.

         15                 And, of course, the first meeting of

         16  the Board is tomorrow, we're all looking forward to

         17  that, and Mayor Bloomberg deserves to be

         18  congratulated for these efforts, as well as for his

         19  deep abiding commitment to creating an

         20  environmentally sustainable city.

         21                 I, Speaker Quinn, and the entire

         22  Council, is absolutely delighted with the prospect

         23  of partnering with the Bloomberg Administration on

         24  this vital issue.

         25                 Today this Committee looks forward to
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          2  learning more about the Administration's plans for

          3  sustainability, and how the Executive and

          4  Legislative bodies of the City government can work

          5  together to lead New York to become the most

          6  sustainable City in the world.

          7                 I would like to say also as everyone

          8  knows, we're joined by Rohit Aggarwala. I hope I'm

          9  saying that correctly. We're friends, I just know

         10  him as Rohit, I never actually pronounced his last

         11  name, but I just did it. I just did it. And we're

         12  very, very happy to have Rohit as a member of our

         13  New York City government family now. He's got a

         14  great background that I think is greatly suited, you

         15  know, for the massive undertaking which he will lead

         16  within the Mayor's Office of Operations. We're very

         17  grateful and happy to have him with us here today.

         18                 I would like to thank all the other

         19  friends from the environmental community that are

         20  here that are deeply committed to making New York

         21  City truly sustainable, and a national model as

         22  well.

         23                 Oh, it's been brought to my attention

         24  that Marcel Van Ooyen is here. Marcel, good to see

         25  you. A great environmental champion who served this
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          2  body so long for so many years, and continues that

          3  effort.

          4                 He's mocking me as I'm saying good

          5  things about him, but we all love Marcel.

          6                 So, without further ado, I'd like to

          7  call Rohit to the witness table.

          8                 As Rohit is making his way I want to

          9  thank in a special way the staff of the Council that

         10  have really been at the forefront of crafting our

         11  environmental, all of the environmental work we do

         12  here. Donna DeCostanzo, Dan Avery, Peter Washburn,

         13  I'm grateful to all of the staff of the Council for

         14  all the work that they do to make this Committee

         15  everything that it is, and we're very happy with

         16  their work.

         17                 So, Rohit, a pleasure to have you.

         18  This is your first appearance before the Committee

         19  and we look forward to a long-term sustainable

         20  relationship, you know, between the Bloomberg

         21  Administration and this Council to make this the

         22  greatest sustainable City that it can be. So, we

         23  welcome you. We have a practice in this Committee of

         24  swearing all of our witnesses. Donna Will give the

         25  oath. After you take the oath, you can state your
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          2  name for the record, and proceed with your good

          3  testimony. Welcome.

          4                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          5  right hand.

          6                 In the testimony that you're about to

          7  give do you swear or affirm to tell the whole truth,

          8  and nothing but the truth?

          9                 MR. AGGARWALA: I do.

         10                 (Witness sworn.)

         11                 MR. AGGARWALA: My name is Rohit T.

         12  Aggarwala. I have also asked to join me here my

         13  special assistant, or I'm sorry, Senior Policy

         14  Advisor for Sustainability, Ariella Rosenberg.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Welcome.

         16                 MR. AGGARWALA: Who is known to many

         17  in this room.

         18                 Good morning, and thank you for the

         19  opportunity to testify today on Intro. 395.

         20                 As I said, my name is Rohit

         21  Aggarwala, and I am the Director of Long-term

         22  Planning and Sustainability.

         23                 As a recent arrival, as you noted, I

         24  guess I owe it to you all to take a moment to

         25  introduce myself.
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          2                 I joined the Administration on June

          3  14th of this year. Prior to that I had been a

          4  management consultant at McKinsey and Company, where

          5  my practice focused on clients in the transportation

          6  sector. I hold a Ph.D in American History an MBA and

          7  a BA from Columbia, and worked in the Clinton

          8  Administration as Special Assistant to the Deputy

          9  Administrator of the Federal Railroad

         10  Administration.

         11                 I'm a native of New York City and

         12  have lived here for 14 of the last 17 years.

         13  Washington drew me away for a few.

         14                 As I'm sure many of you are aware,

         15  last week in California the Mayor announced five

         16  steps that he has taken towards the creation of a

         17  sustainability agenda for New York.

         18                 The first was the creation of my

         19  office. Within the Mayor's Office of Operations and

         20  reporting to Deputy Mayor for Economic Development

         21  and Rebuilding, Dan Doctoroff.

         22                 I will describe my office in some

         23  detail in a moment.

         24                 The second announcement was the

         25  undertaking of two greenhouse gas inventories, one
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          2  for the City government's operation, and the other

          3  for the entire City.

          4                 These will allow us to understand our

          5  current carbon emissions, the levels they were at in

          6  a base year, and to reject out where they are likely

          7  to be without new intervention.

          8                 With this information, we can set

          9  carbon targets that make sense.

         10                 The Mayor's third announcement was

         11  the appointment of the Sustainability Advisory Board

         12  with members from government, business and the

         13  advocacy community to advise us on what the

         14  sustainability agenda ought to include.

         15                 It's important, as you mentioned, Mr.

         16  Chairman, that both you and the Speaker will be part

         17  of that board, because the Council and this

         18  Committee in particular, has been a great ally and

         19  in many cases a clear leader in our shared efforts

         20  for the truly sustainable New York.

         21                 The Mayor's fourth announcement was

         22  the appointment of Douglas I. Foy as Special Advisor

         23  on Sustainability. As President of the Conservation

         24  Law Foundation, Doug was New England's leading

         25  environmental activist for two decades; among other
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          2  things, he led the fight to clean up Boston's

          3  Harbor, and was a leader in the creation of the

          4  Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative.

          5                 More recently, as Secretary for

          6  Commonwealth Development for Massachusetts, Doug

          7  worked to integrate his State's Land Use Planning,

          8  transportation policy, and environmental policy into

          9  a single effort toward economic, environmental and

         10  social sustainability.

         11                 The Mayor's final announcement was

         12  the creation of a partnership with the Earth

         13  Institute at Columbia University to provide

         14  scientific and academic support to my new office.

         15  Led by Jeffrey Sachs, the Earth Institute is home to

         16  scholars who study all aspects of sustainability,

         17  from climatologists to urban planners, and they will

         18  help us ensure that our goals, our targets and our

         19  action plan are all informed by the latest

         20  scientific work.

         21                 Mayor Bloomberg and Deputy Mayor

         22  Doctoroff have given my office a three-part mission.

         23  First, we will develop a plan for the City's

         24  long-term growth and development as the Mayor

         25  announced in his State of the City Address.

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 Second, we will integrate

          3  sustainability goals and practices into every aspect

          4  of that plan.

          5                 Last, but definitely not least, we

          6  will transform New York City government into a green

          7  organization.

          8                 Additionally, the office will be

          9  managing the many varied and cost-cutting

         10  sustainability initiatives that are not part of the

         11  long-term plan.

         12                 The choice of the Mayor's Office of

         13  Operations as home for the City's sustainability

         14  effort was strategic. The rigorous statistical

         15  reporting shown in the Mayor's Management Report

         16  which Operations produces, is the same kind of rigor

         17  we wish to bring to the monitoring of the City's

         18  environmental progress.

         19                 The Office of Long-term Planning and

         20  Sustainability currently has six full-time

         21  employees, including myself, two senior policy

         22  advisors for sustainability, and one senior policy

         23  advisor for transportation.

         24                 Intro 395 proposes to require the

         25  designation of the sustainability officer for the
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          2  City, a Sustainability Advisory Board, and a

          3  sustainability action plan with targets.

          4                 I'm happy to report that the

          5  Bloomberg Administration supports the creation of

          6  all three. In fact, the first two have already been

          7  achieved.

          8                 The action plan itself is precisely

          9  what we have called the office and the advisory

         10  board into being to accomplish.

         11                 I believe that we have many of the

         12  same goals, and we look forward to working together

         13  on a process that will produce a strong plan, based

         14  on expert advice, and taking into account the

         15  perspectives of many stakeholders within our City.

         16                 This is a process that will take time

         17  and should be allowed to develop with some

         18  flexibility.

         19                 For these reasons, we believe that it

         20  is premature to enact Intro. 395 now. I note also

         21  that the Law Department has advised me that Intro.

         22  395 raises certain curtailment issues that we hope

         23  can be resolved at the appropriate time.

         24                 With an established advisory board

         25  meeting for the first time tomorrow, we would rather
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          2  leave certain details for their recommendation, such

          3  as the timing of the intermediate targets, and the

          4  list of topic areas to be covered.

          5                 At some point, however, we expect

          6  that it will make sense to create a legal

          7  requirement for this and all subsequent

          8  administrations, to have an office of sustainability

          9  and an action plan.

         10                 However, since this process is

         11  underway already, it makes more sense to see it

         12  unfold. Then, whatever legislation you enact can

         13  benefit from the experience of the first efforts of

         14  this Administration and my office.

         15                 I would be happy to answer any

         16  questions. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I

         18  thank you for your statement, and for your gracious

         19  comments regarding the Council. It's appreciated.

         20                 This is the first -- I have some

         21  prepared questions, but regarding your testimony

         22  specifically on Intro. 395, it is the first time I

         23  or my staff have heard any issues regarding

         24  curtailment. And, so, I'm not a lawyer, you're not a

         25  lawyer, so we'll leave it to the lawyers to figure
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          2  that out. You know, duly noted that the

          3  Administration believes there are some curtailment

          4  issues which we'll probe.

          5                 Because I think the main body of your

          6  testimony on 395 to be that you believe as we do

          7  that it certainly makes sense as you state to create

          8  a legal requirement for this and all subsequent

          9  administrations to have an office of sustainability

         10  and action plan, which is what 395 is really all

         11  about to make sure that it's put into City law,

         12  because certainly the effort on sustainability will,

         13  you know, succeed the Bloomberg Administration, will

         14  succeed my tenure here as Chair of this Committee,

         15  and of course, what the Bloomberg Administration and

         16  this Council and this Committee wants is for this

         17  effort to succeed us. And so that's why I think the

         18  ultimate passage of 395 at the appropriate time in

         19  the appropriate form makes sense. I'm happy to hear

         20  that you support that. We've been kind of been

         21  hearing from the Administration anyway and that's

         22  all welcome.

         23                 So, thank you. Thank you for that.

         24  But, you know, duly noted about the curtailment.

         25  We'll take a look at that. I'll have the lawyers do
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          2  that.

          3                 How does the sustainability element

          4  of the office relate to the long-term planning

          5  element of your office?

          6                 MR. AGGARWALA: As far as I am

          7  concerned, they are in many ways one in the same.

          8  So, as you know, the Mayor announced in the State of

          9  the City the kick-off of what was then termed a

         10  strategic land use plan.

         11                 And then as the Mayor then described

         12  in May at the League of Conservation Voters' dinner,

         13  the initial work on that strategic land use plan

         14  really forced -- not forced I'd say, but really led

         15  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff and the Mayor to recognize

         16  that good, long-term planning of any type was really

         17  the same as good sustainability planning. And so the

         18  decision was made really to create this joint office

         19  that would do both because in fact they're not two

         20  separate things.

         21                 So, we need, and as I stated in my

         22  testimony, the Mayor has told us to ensure that we

         23  insert sustainability thinking and sustainable

         24  planning into all aspects of that plan.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I'd
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          2  like to recognize Council Member Lanza, a valued

          3  member of this Committee. And when we talk about the

          4  Council and the issue of sustainability, you know,

          5  it's truly bipartisan. Thank you. Thank you, Andrew.

          6                 What is the time frame that you have

          7  for the development of the sustainability plan and

          8  what are the major milestones and major deliverables

          9  in the next year, thereabouts?

         10                 MR. AGGARWALA: I think it is our

         11  ambition to have a plan long before a full year

         12  passes from now.

         13                 As you've noted, we both have ticking

         14  clocks, and I think we want to make sure that this

         15  Administration and this Council has the time to work

         16  together to implement a fair portion of whatever

         17  plan we produce.

         18                 I do think that while we are working

         19  in a hurry and the Mayor is going to make that point

         20  to the Sustainability Advisory Board tomorrow, we

         21  should leave the exact time line to evolve out of

         22  the first few meetings of the advisory board. I

         23  think it's premature at this point to set a clear

         24  target until we really have a discussion with that

         25  strong and thoughtful group about the task at hand.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have any

          3  concept? That's sort of the first part of the

          4  question about the timetable, but major milestones,

          5  major deliverables you can conceive of, even in a

          6  sort of obscure kind of a way?

          7                 I mean, again, you don't want to pin

          8  down the advisory committee, but your concept for

          9  milestones, deliverables, what we are looking for

         10  like in the next year or so?

         11                 MR. AGGARWALA: I would suggest that

         12  we should plan to be working together some time next

         13  spring on a joint bill. That's something we would

         14  support and you could take the lead on, that would

         15  ideally enact certain aspects of the plan.

         16                 It's not clear to me, given that what

         17  many of the members on the Advisory Board have told

         18  me over the course of the couple of months that I've

         19  been meeting with them in helping advise the Mayor

         20  on who should be on it, there are some things that

         21  are likely relatively short term, in terms of how

         22  quickly, how easily we will be able to figure them

         23  out and come to consensus.

         24                 There are some things that will

         25  probably take a longer period of time.
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          2                 So, I think from the Advisory Board

          3  we'll get a clue as to how quickly we can start to

          4  put things into implementation. But I would say next

          5  spring, we should think about a joint legislative

          6  agenda.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          8                 We've had some preliminary

          9  discussions about, you know, what are the major

         10  subject areas that the Advisory Board may want to

         11  focus on. Although the general notion of

         12  sustainability is almost infinite, or whatever the

         13  Advisory Committee has to hone in on certain

         14  specific subject areas and you have to focus someone

         15  otherwise, you'll just be to disperse and won't be

         16  able to be very effective.

         17                 And do you have any -- are there any

         18  things that you specifically as Director of this

         19  office want to push for, you know, specific focus by

         20  the Committee? Like what subject areas if you had

         21  your way would you really want this Advisory

         22  Committee to focus on?

         23                 Clearly you've thought about that,

         24  and so if it were up to you -- you can't speak for

         25  everyone but you can certainly speak for you, you
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          2  have been placed in a key position here, what is it

          3  that you think you would like to see the Advisory

          4  Committee focus on and advance? Or in the absence of

          5  that, what process will you seek to have folks

          6  engage in that will lead to these sort of marquis

          7  issues?

          8                 MR. AGGARWALA: Well, as the Mayor

          9  mentioned on Thursday when he was speaking with

         10  Governor Schwarzenegger, I think around the world

         11  there is general agreement that carbon emissions are

         12  core to any thought about sustainability.

         13                 There are, as you know, many ways to

         14  go about dealing with that, and there are many

         15  approaches. And I think particularly the day before

         16  the first meeting, I would hate to speak and

         17  therefore close off or encourage certain topics, but

         18  at a later time I would be happy to venture some

         19  ideas.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Indulge me. Go

         21  ahead. This is a hearing. You know, people come, we

         22  ask questions, and I think one of the, you know, one

         23  of the things that you try to balance in these kinds

         24  of endeavors is that, you know, you're a government,

         25  I'm a government, and, yes, we have the advisory
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          2  committee and we value them or whatever, but you

          3  know, which is the tail and which is the dog? And,

          4  so, I think it's incumbent upon us in government to

          5  sort of have our own ideas and you know, try to

          6  advance them. You mentioned carbon. I think that's

          7  important. I'm looking for some more. I think that

          8  that's fair. This is a public hearing. This is what

          9  we do.

         10                 MR. AGGARWALA: The components of

         11  carbon emissions, as you know as well, if not better

         12  than I do, are primarily in the energy that it

         13  consumed in buildings and the energy that it

         14  consumed in vehicles. With buildings accounting for

         15  roughly we think 70 percent, although that's just an

         16  ingoing thought. Until we do the full community

         17  carbon study we will not know for sure.

         18                 Therefore, it seems clearly that we

         19  have to think about energy use in our buildings, and

         20  we have to think energy use in our vehicles, and

         21  this reflects the Council's agenda of last year and

         22  that already led the way for the City government

         23  with the work on the alternative fuel vehicles and

         24  the work on Local Law 86 with the Green building

         25  agenda.
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          2                 How we translate that into a

          3  City-wide, community-wide effort I think certainly

          4  remains to be seen.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Let's talk

          6  a little bit about the carbon for a second, and the

          7  inventory. This is an effort that has been underway

          8  for quite some time, but the amount of resources

          9  that were dedicated to this endeavor were I think

         10  not what they are soon going to be, because this is

         11  a big deal now, and what is your view of how long

         12  it's going to take that carbon emissions inventory

         13  to be finalized?

         14                 And just tell folks a little bit

         15  about how that's going to proceed.

         16                 MR. AGGARWALA: Sure. So, there are

         17  two studies that we have underway. One was begun

         18  some time ago, and we are in fact within, we think

         19  four to six weeks of releasing it, and we've already

         20  discussed, arranged a briefing for the Council prior

         21  to its public release. And that focuses on the

         22  carbon emissions of City operations themselves. And

         23  that in many ways is a bottom up kind of analysis,

         24  where --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that's only
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          2  a couple of weeks away from finalization.

          3                 MR. AGGARWALA: Correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          5                 MR. AGGARWALA: And that will then be

          6  released to the public.

          7                 The way that that works, following a

          8  model that is generally accepted and endorsed by

          9  Ickley (phonetic), which is the group, as you well

         10  know, that coordinates all local government action

         11  on sustainability, gathers energy consumption data,

         12  as well as a couple other data points that we know

         13  to be highly relevant to carbon emissions, such as

         14  landfill methane release.

         15                 It uses some methodology or uses some

         16  calculations that sometimes using averages,

         17  sometimes using specifics, seeks to convert that

         18  into C02 equivalence, and then gives you a total

         19  number of equivalent tons for the City government's

         20  operation.

         21                 The community-wide study is in fact

         22  slightly easier we think and therefore we can get it

         23  done in six months, as the Mayor committed to,

         24  because we really did just start that only a few

         25  weeks ago, and that, of course --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is doing

          3  that, by the way? Who is carrying that out? The

          4  Citywide non-governmental inventory?

          5                 MR. AGGARWALA: We're doing it, my

          6  office in conjunction with the Office of

          7  Environmental Coordination.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Bob.

          9                 MR. AGGARWALA: Bob's office, yes.

         10                 So the Citywide survey can benefit

         11  from certain aggregate numbers like total energy,

         12  total electricity consumed in New York City is

         13  actually easier to get then adding up all of the

         14  various electricity bills paid by DCAS and other

         15  City agencies, which is one of the reasons we think

         16  it can be done somewhat sooner, but we have already

         17  begun to wrestle with some of the difficulties,

         18  because where you draw the boundaries is something

         19  that people who are concerned with sustainability

         20  and carbon emissions around the world are wrestling

         21  with, and I have already been speaking with people

         22  from the London Sustainability Office, people from

         23  California's effort and from others where we have to

         24  figure out some of the difficulties.

         25                 For example, the one that keeps
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          2  coming up interestingly is air craft emissions. Now

          3  how do we count a flight that takes off from JFK? Is

          4  it only the emissions for the few seconds it's over

          5  New York City? Is it the emissions all the way to,

          6  say, Tokyo, because it refueled in New York?

          7  Unclear, and that's some of the philosophy in fact

          8  that we have to work through with our colleagues

          9  around the world because one of the key things that

         10  we must do is coordinate. Because if we've got one

         11  number based on different assumptions from some

         12  other cities, both of them lose value.

         13                 Thank you. Thank you for that

         14  explanation. We're interested, of course, as you

         15  know, and as everyone knows, we've got a carbon bill

         16  out there, C02 bill, so the Council is deeply

         17  interested in this, and of course, it's critically

         18  important that we act on that.

         19                 So, I'm in total agreement with you

         20  that carbon is a huge ticket and we want to focus on

         21  that. And unfortunately I know with the group that's

         22  being assembled, we're not going to have to work

         23  real hard to make a case that this is something that

         24  we really have to focus on. So, this is good.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You know, I want

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  to talk a little bit more about 395 and imbedded

          3  within 395 is the notion which I think you and other

          4  advocates have long-term sustainability would be

          5  for, is the notion of indicators, meaningful

          6  indicators, commitments, you know, roadmaps for

          7  reaching those commitments. What 395 is all about,

          8  is providing the structure that we believe is

          9  incumbent upon any serious State ability action

         10  plan, hard indicators, hard commitments, detailed

         11  roadmap on how to get there, you know, milestones.

         12  Yet, of course, we would like to see the successors

         13  to our effort, sort of to carry through.

         14                 Do you support that and do you

         15  envision that for, you know, 395 or the ultimate

         16  bill that, you know, crystalizes legislatively this

         17  City's sustainability effort?

         18                 MR. AGGARWALA: Chairman, I completely

         19  agree that as a City we must have clear targets,

         20  clear indicators that are reported to the public, as

         21  well as in City government on a regular and

         22  appropriate frequency.

         23                 We do think we should work together

         24  further to figure out how specific the law should

         25  be, versus what degree of freedom should be allowed
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          2  in the plan that you will help advise on.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. This is

          4  the very essence of bill negotiation, and, so, yes,

          5  there will be give and take, push and shove on that,

          6  and that's all fine. I welcome that.

          7                 This is a question that's by way a

          8  follow-up to a conversation we just had about

          9  setting things into law, legal requirements, legal

         10  framework, and your testimony makes reference to

         11  legal requirements related to the sustainability

         12  office and action plan. And does your sort of notion

         13  of legal requirements extend to let's say hard

         14  targets for carbon reductions? That would just be an

         15  example of, you know, many examples that one could

         16  put forward. Because in our bill, we're looking for

         17  sort of hard targets, and is this what you could

         18  envision for the sustainability action plan, and the

         19  City's work on C02, to have sort of hard targets,

         20  hard numerical targets, and when they're going to be

         21  achieved and other targets like that sort of built

         22  right into the law?

         23                 Because you could build into law the

         24  aspiration to achieve progress or whatever, and that

         25  can be set out in law, but we were looking for an
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          2  area where possible to sort of set out, you know,

          3  hard, reachable targets so this is what we were kind

          4  of looking at from our end, and is this something

          5  that you believe that you can ultimately support?

          6                 Hard targets for sort of carbon and

          7  I'll ask you to speak on that, as an example, as

          8  well as other, you know, hard numerical targets?

          9                 MR. AGGARWALA: In terms of what we

         10  decide to put in the law and what we decide to leave

         11  as aspirations within the law and details to be

         12  worked out non-legislatively, I think that that's

         13  something we should discuss further.

         14                 But I do believe that any credible

         15  sustainability plan will set out hard targets that

         16  are easily measurable along a series of the most

         17  important indicators. And my reference in my

         18  testimony to the MMR is the model that I have in

         19  mind, because that is something that is reported in

         20  a regular way, it's made public, it's numerical,

         21  it's rigorous.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I agree. I

         23  agree.

         24                 And I'd also like to recognize the

         25  presence of Bill DeBlasio, another valued member of
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          2  this Committee. Thank you. Thank you, Bill.

          3                 How will your office make sure that

          4  the City's commitments on sustainability are adhered

          5  to by the various City agencies?

          6                 MR. AGGARWALA: Well, as part of the

          7  Mayor's Office I think we can play a strong role in

          8  coordinating the work of the overall City

          9  government. As mine is a new component within the

         10  Office of Operations, our relationships are still

         11  being worked out.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good luck.

         13                 MR. AGGARWALA: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me follow-up

         15  a little more about other City agencies and

         16  involvement with this effort.

         17                 And when we have the advisory

         18  committee meetings, will there be representatives of

         19  other agencies just generally in attendance?

         20                 I know I'm going to have some of my

         21  staff there. What has been the level of your

         22  coordination and colloquy between your office and

         23  other City agencies with regard to the Committee

         24  meetings, and how is that going to work?

         25                 Can I expect to see representatives
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          2  of other agencies who have been sort of designated

          3  like sort of the sustainability captains or whatever

          4  for various agencies? Has that been thought through

          5  and can you opine on that?

          6                 MR. AGGARWALA: The short answer is

          7  yes, certainly, I think to develop a sustainability

          8  agenda for the whole City just done with the Mayor's

          9  Office would not make sense because then you're

         10  forcing other agencies to attempt to enact something

         11  or implement something that they have not had input

         12  into.

         13                 I do not at this moment know exactly

         14  whether the Commissioner from certain agencies or

         15  representative will be there tomorrow. I don't have

         16  that on hand, but I can get back to you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         18                 Rohit, I would like to thank you very

         19  much for your presence here today.

         20                 MR. AGGARWALA: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And thank you

         22  very much for being here. I look forward to working

         23  with both of you, and I think we're talking like

         24  later today, right? So let the games begin. So we

         25  have this, and then we have later this afternoon,
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          2  and then a meeting tomorrow and, you know, hopefully

          3  we'll get to the point where we'll work together so

          4  much that you will recognize my neck ties and I'll

          5  recognize your neckties and we'll all just, it will

          6  be like that.

          7                 So, I look forward to a long, healthy

          8  and happy work with you in your office and Bloomberg

          9  Administration and members of the Advisory

         10  Committee. And so it's all good.

         11                 So, thank you very much for being

         12  here today, and I'll see you later.

         13                 MR. AGGARWALA: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Next witness,

         15  Christopher Zeppie, Director of the Office of

         16  Environmental Policy Programs and Compliance for the

         17  Port Authority of New York and New Jersey.

         18                 Mr. Zeppie, thank you very much for

         19  taking the time to be with us here. We look forward

         20  to your views.

         21                 Mr. Zeppie, thank you for being here.

         22  The Counsel to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, will

         23  give the oath and then you can proceed with your

         24  testimony, stating your name for the record also.

         25                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your
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          2  right hand. In the testimony that you are about to

          3  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          4  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          5                 MR. ZEPPIE: I do.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          7                 (Witness sworn.)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Zeppie. You need the red light on the button to be

         10  off in order for you to be heard.

         11                 MR. ZEPPIE: Good morning. My name is

         12  Christopher Zeppie. I'm Director of Environmental

         13  Policy Programs and Compliance with the Port

         14  Authority of New York and New Jersey.

         15                 Chairman Gennaro, members of the

         16  Committee on Environmental Protection, thank you for

         17  the opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of

         18  the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey, in

         19  support of Intro. No. 395, a bill that would create

         20  and implement a comprehensive environmental

         21  sustainability action plan for the City of New York.

         22                 The Port Authority applauds this

         23  initiative and welcomes this occasion to provide

         24  comments that would aid in its effectiveness.

         25                 Our organization is itself committed
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          2  to integrating the principles of sustainable

          3  development in its operations and capital program.

          4                 As an example, the Port Authority

          5  recently adopted an administrative policy for

          6  sustainable design --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Zeppie, if I

          8  could just interrupt.

          9                 MR. ZEPPIE: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If I can ask the

         11  Sergeants to call some order in the room, please? I

         12  just want the benefit of people hearing Mr. Zeppie's

         13  good testimony. So, if people could keep their

         14  conversations down, I'd appreciate that. Thank you.

         15                 Mr. Zeppie.

         16                 MR. ZEPPIE: As an example, the Port

         17  Authority recently adopted an administrative policy

         18  for sustainable design, which promises to improve

         19  the environmental performance of new and

         20  substantially renovated buildings and facilities.

         21                 A copy of this policy is attached to

         22  reference.

         23                 The experience that the Port

         24  Authority is gaining in sustainable development

         25  informs my testimony today. The path toward
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          2  sustainable development poses tremendous policy

          3  challenges. My testimony will focus on some of these

          4  challenges in the hope of highlighting them will

          5  inform the City's prospective environmental

          6  sustainability action plan.

          7                 The challenges to which I am

          8  referring are implicit in the definition of

          9  environmental sustainability that is put forth in

         10  this bill.

         11                 To quote directly, environmental

         12  sustainability shall mean a state in which human

         13  priorities of social and economic development do not

         14  conflict with the protection and functioning of the

         15  natural environment.

         16                 The conflict that the environmental

         17  sustainability action plan would work to avert is

         18  evident everywhere in New York City and throughout

         19  the world.

         20                 Indeed, historians now point to

         21  evidence that suggest that human economic activity

         22  significantly altered the natural environment

         23  beginning in ancient times.

         24                 It follows logically then to avert

         25  this conflict. Limits must be placed on economic
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          2  activity. Yet, we live in a world that prizes

          3  economic growth, without much regard for the

          4  environmental consequences.

          5                 The challenge we face, therefore, as

          6  policy makers and public managers is to cope with a

          7  conflict that seems intrinsic to our society.

          8                 The best that the world has done to

          9  date is to improve environmental efficiency to

         10  reduce the environmental impact per unit of

         11  production.

         12                 The bill, therefore, ought to empower

         13  City agencies to undertake measures that serve the

         14  goal of environmental sustainability, even if the

         15  measures are deemed uneconomical in the short term.

         16                 One way to enable such sustainability

         17  measures is to consider their economic performance

         18  over their lifecycle, rather than the shorter

         19  periods typically used in financial analysis.

         20                 The Port Authority has instituted the

         21  lifecycle analysis I am proposing in its policy of

         22  sustainable design.

         23                 A second related challenge in the

         24  implicit and stated definition of environmental

         25  sustainability has to do with intergenerational
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          2  equity.

          3                 As we know, many of the environmental

          4  consequences of our present actions tend to manifest

          5  some time in the future.

          6                 The best example perhaps is global

          7  warming, whose most detrimental effects are expected

          8  decades from now.

          9                 To the extent, therefore, that the

         10  present social and economic development of New

         11  Yorkers will conflict with the protection and

         12  functioning of the national environment in the

         13  future, there are difficult policy questions to

         14  answer about our responsibility to future

         15  generations.

         16                 The stated definitions reference to

         17  the natural environment points to yet another

         18  challenge, our limited knowledge of what amounts to

         19  a sustainable state.

         20                 The definition in the bill emphasizes

         21  the functioning of the natural environment, but not

         22  the preservation or expansion of our stock of

         23  natural capital.

         24                 That difference suggests that it may

         25  be tolerable to reduce the stock of natural capital,
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          2  have fewer trees or less clean water, for instance,

          3  so long as the environment continues to function.

          4                 Yet, our knowledge of how much we can

          5  affect an environmental system before it collapses

          6  is insufficient.

          7                 Again, as policy-makers we are faced

          8  with the challenge of working towards sustainability

          9  without fully understanding the parameters of our

         10  work.

         11                 A permanent advisory committee whose

         12  members serve for specified terms would help the

         13  City incorporate new knowledge and methodologies

         14  about sustainable development as they develop.

         15                 Furthermore, the City of New York has

         16  an important role to play in supporting scientific

         17  and technological research that contributes to

         18  environmental sustainability.

         19                 It is also just as important that the

         20  City create mechanisms that incorporate scientific

         21  advancements in environmental sustainability into

         22  policy formulation.

         23                 Finally, the City can begin to meet

         24  the challenges of environmental sustainability by

         25  ensuring that both policy-makers and the general
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          2  public understand the environmental consequences of

          3  economic activity.

          4                 Often these environmental impacts are

          5  complex and difficult to quantify in monetary terms.

          6  As a result, we tend to overlook them in policy and

          7  project evaluations, as well as in our day-to-day

          8  choices. Environmental education and public

          9  awareness campaigns will be crucial if we are to

         10  deal effectively with the environmental problems we

         11  face.

         12                 New York City stands to benefit from

         13  the development and implementation of a

         14  comprehensive environmental sustainability action

         15  plan.

         16                 The plan would also inform the

         17  sustainability efforts of the Port Authority which

         18  has an important role to play in advancing

         19  sustainability in the region.

         20                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         21  provide testimony about this bill.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Zeppie, I

         23  want to thank you for being here today. Not only for

         24  being here today but for your deep commitment to

         25  sustainability and your deep commitment to
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          2  environmental protection, and how you, you know,

          3  have such a challenge before you with regard to

          4  everything that the Port Authority has to do, and,

          5  of course, airport, airport safety, and everything

          6  that goes into making sure that the airports are

          7  sound, and safe and can function, and your good work

          8  in making sure that to the maximum that is possible,

          9  that Port Authority does everything it can to

         10  mitigate all the environmental impacts from your

         11  activities, and you're at the lead of that effort

         12  and we're grateful for that.

         13                 As you say, the Port Authority does

         14  have an important role to play in moving forward

         15  sustainability in their region.

         16                 And a very special thank you for your

         17  hard work on the Jamaica Bay Task Force. We're

         18  greatly appreciative to you particularly and to the

         19  Port Authority by extension, for your good work in

         20  that endeavor.

         21                 Let me ask you to comment, if I could

         22  ask about, you heard the colloquy between myself and

         23  Rhiot from the Mayor's Office regarding Intro. 395.

         24  Do you have any sort of general observations you'd

         25  like to share with us?

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 MR. ZEPPIE: The only thing I would

          3  like to add to the colloquy, is that if there is a

          4  way that many of the City agencies could enable

          5  their architects and engineers to move forward on

          6  sustainability initiatives, without waiting for an

          7  overall plan -- for example, when we speak about

          8  lifecycle costs, and something that will ultimately

          9  have a positive return, I think if that message just

         10  went out to architects and engineers and many of the

         11  City agencies, it would enable them to think about

         12  some of their capital plans and major work programs

         13  in a new light, knowing that even their initial cost

         14  may be higher, that this is now an acceptable policy

         15  within City government.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. I

         17  actually meant to point out in your statement, where

         18  you make that point about taking the long view about

         19  looking, about economic performance over lifecycle,

         20  rather than over like the short periods, and so I

         21  appreciate that perspective and we'll bring that to

         22  the table in our work with the advisory committee.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Zeppie. I appreciate

         24  your being here today.

         25                 MR. ZEPPIE: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, we're

          3  going to be hearing from some panels. So, the first

          4  multi-person panel we're going to bring up, Eric

          5  Goldstein from NRDC. Chris Garvin from Cook and Fox

          6  Architects. Corrie Freedman, of the American Lung

          7  Association, and Craig Wilson of LCV.

          8                 We're also joined by Council Member

          9  Stewart. I would also like to recognize Council

         10  Member Ken Stewart.

         11                 Thank you, Ken.

         12                 Okay, thank you all for being here.

         13  We appreciate the benefit of hearing your views.

         14  We're going to have Donna give the oath and then

         15  we'll hear from each of the panelists, and we'll

         16  wait until the last panelist has testified before we

         17  commence questioning.

         18                 So, Donna, please.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         20  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

         21  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         22  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         23                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, maybe
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          2  we'll start with Eric and then proceed to the right.

          3                 Eric, thanks for being here.

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Good morning, Mr.

          5  Chairman, members of the Committee. Thank you for

          6  having us and for calling this important hearing.

          7                 My name is Eric Goldstein, and I'm an

          8  attorney with the Natural Resources Defense Council.

          9  We are pleased to be here today to testify in

         10  support of Intro. 375.

         11                 As you know, among other things this

         12  bill would establish 13 distinct environmental

         13  sustainability categories, identify or require that

         14  a plan identify measurable indicators for each goal,

         15  and then identify the policies and practices the

         16  City would implement to ensure that those are met.

         17  We will also have a variety of important reporting

         18  requirements.

         19                 NRDC applauds the Sustainability

         20  Office announcement that Mayor Bloomberg made last

         21  week. We think it can be a very important

         22  contribution, and as it relates to this legislation,

         23  we believe that with some modifications, Intro. 375

         24  will be fully compatible with and compliment the

         25  Mayor's new initiative.
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          2                 Indeed, we believe that the creation

          3  of the new Office of Long-term Planning and

          4  Sustainability would work even better if the

          5  objectives set forth in this bill were enacted into

          6  law.

          7                 Three reasons, which I'll quickly

          8  mention. First, enactment of Intro. 375 is necessary

          9  to ensure that the concept of sustainability is

         10  broadly interpreted. It's essential that the new

         11  office focus not only on the issues of global

         12  warming and green procurement, although obviously

         13  they are extremely important, but also on other

         14  issues such as the long-term protection of our

         15  drinking water supply, the future of our public

         16  transportation system, and access to open space for

         17  all New Yorkers and for future generations of City

         18  dwellers.

         19                 Passage of 375 will ensure that the

         20  new sustainability office retains a broad focus and

         21  agenda.

         22                 Second, enactment of Intro. 375 will

         23  make another important contribution by virtue of the

         24  bill's reporting requirements, by requiring annual

         25  progress reports and five-year comprehensive policy
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          2  reviews, the proposed legislation will create a

          3  mechanism that will keep the sustainability issue on

          4  the public agenda, and formalize the work product of

          5  the new sustainability office.

          6                 And finally, Intro. 375 will offer

          7  one further benefit. It will ensure that the City's

          8  new sustainability program becomes a permanent part

          9  of City government.

         10                 Without this legislation it would be

         11  possible for some future Mayor who does not share

         12  Mayor Bloomberg's commitment to this issue, to

         13  simply reorganize his staff and downsize or even

         14  eliminate the sustainability office.

         15                 Intro. 375 reporting requirements,

         16  along with redrafted sections dealing with the

         17  creation of an office of sustainability, would help

         18  assure that this essential governmental function of

         19  assuring environmental sustainability will be

         20  performed in New York City for many years to come.

         21                 In sum, Mr. Chair, we thank you and

         22  your co-sponsors for introducing this bill. We leave

         23  the timing in your hands, but we believe that

         24  passage and incorporation of these sustainability

         25  office concepts into law is an effort that makes a
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          2  lot of sense.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          5                 Thank you, and I'm happy that NRDC

          6  will be represented on the advisory committee. And

          7  if in any event like Ishul (phonetic) can't make it

          8  one day, you know, you come.

          9                 Thank you, Eric.

         10                 Corri.

         11                 MS. FREEDMAN: Hi. Good morning, Chair

         12  Gennaro and members of the City Council. My name is

         13  Corri Freedman. I am Director of Advocacy at the

         14  American Lung Association of the City of New York,

         15  and for more than 100 years the Lung Association has

         16  worked to prevent lung disease and promote lung

         17  health among the residents of the five boroughs of

         18  New York City.

         19                 In that regard, I would like to

         20  provide comments and support for Intro. 395.

         21                 This proposed legislation represents

         22  a firm and permanent commitment from the City

         23  Council in partnership with the Administration to

         24  create, implement and achieve a comprehensive

         25  environmental sustainability plan.
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          2                 When enacted, this plan has the

          3  potential to markedly improve the public health,

          4  particularly respiratory health, by reducing the

          5  burden of environmental degradation on the health

          6  and well-being of New Yorkers.

          7                 Additionally, this bill cements the

          8  unique collaboration among all levels of City

          9  government necessary to create a sustainable New

         10  York City.

         11                 Viable sustainability of our City

         12  will only be attainable through a close coordination

         13  of our City agencies and representatives.

         14                 Exposure to poor air quality both

         15  indoors and outdoors has serious and fatal health

         16  consequences, as you all know.

         17                 Creating a sustainability plan

         18  directly addresses air quality and the factors that

         19  lead to exceedingly high levels of pollution in our

         20  City, such as energy sources, toxins and hazardous

         21  materials, transportation and Land Use will have a

         22  profound impact on public health.

         23                 The ALACNY looks forward to

         24  supporting a plan created in conjunction with the

         25  proposed advisory committee, and sufficiently vetted
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          2  through communities citywide that view

          3  sustainability with an eye towards reducing the

          4  burden poor air has on our City, which is plagued

          5  with astoundingly high rates of asthma and lung

          6  disease.

          7                 Every day more than 2 million of our

          8  sons and daughters, friends and neighbors are

          9  struggling to breathe with respiratory illnesses

         10  made worse by poor air quality.

         11                 We understand and applaud the Mayor

         12  for already designating a Director of the Office of

         13  Long-term Planning and Sustainability, which ensures

         14  the commitment to the creation of a plan.

         15                 But Intro. 395 would formalize

         16  responsibility of this role and involve the City

         17  Council to create measurable outcomes and evaluative

         18  tools for this plan to be evaluated periodically.

         19                 Specifically, the lung association

         20  would like to recommend that in addition to an

         21  assessment of the cost savings associated with the

         22  implementation of the plan, health indicators should

         23  be measured as well.

         24                 While we do believe that increased

         25  energy efficiency and other components of the
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          2  sustainability plan will promote cost savings, we

          3  believe that a meaningful measure of the

          4  sustainability of the City can and should be the

          5  noticeable tangible improvement in the public

          6  health, including fewer asthma attacks, incidence of

          7  lung disease and premature death that are its

          8  result.

          9                 Additionally, we believe that the

         10  advisory committee should continue to exist

         11  throughout the entire creation of the draft plan,

         12  and meet periodically throughout the implementation

         13  phase.

         14                 The advisory board can provide

         15  valuable insight to the successes and challenges of

         16  our plan. It will also represent a cross-section of

         17  communities interest and expertise, all with the

         18  common vision of a sustainable City.

         19                 Lastly, we strongly support

         20  conducting widely publicized public hearings in each

         21  borough to ensure that all communities, especially

         22  those disproportionately impacted by environmental

         23  degradation and poor health, can participate in

         24  development and successes of this plan.

         25                 Again, the American Lung Association
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          2  of the City of New York thanks you for your

          3  leadership towards a healthier New York City.

          4                 With the passage of Intro. 395, we

          5  look forward to actively participating in the

          6  development and implementation of this plan, and to

          7  realizing a sustainable City that will improve the

          8  life an breath for all New Yorkers. Thanks.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         10  you, Corri. Craig.

         11                 MR. WILSON: Thank you. Good morning.

         12  My name is Craig Wilson. I am the Director of New

         13  York City Policy and Advocacy for the New York

         14  League of Conservation Voters.

         15                 Founded in 1989, the League is the

         16  non-partisan political arm of New York's

         17  environmental community and seeks to make the

         18  environment a top priority with New York's elected

         19  officials, political candidates, businesses and

         20  voters.

         21                 On behalf of the League, I'm pleased

         22  to be here today to support and encourage the City

         23  Council to move forward with the passage of Intro.

         24  395.

         25                 This legislation will help ensure

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that current and future City Administrations pursue

          3  a comprehensive sustainability agenda.

          4                 Environmental sustainability means

          5  providing for our current needs without jeopardizing

          6  the ability of future generations to enjoy a clean

          7  and healthy environment.

          8                 New York City can accomplish this

          9  goal, while also continuing to grow our economy and

         10  population by conserving resources, protecting human

         11  health, and improving the City's livability.

         12                 Last week, Mayor Bloomberg announced

         13  the creation of a sustainability office, a terrific

         14  step forward for New York City's environment.

         15                 This initiative will help ensure a

         16  vibrant, thriving, environmentally sound City for

         17  future generations and the League applauds the Mayor

         18  for his leadership on this important issue.

         19                 The challenge before the City

         20  Administration now is to expeditiously create a

         21  comprehensive sustainability agenda appropriate for

         22  New York City, and to implement this agenda within

         23  the remainder of the Mayor's term across numerous

         24  government agencies.

         25                 This undertaking has a significant
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          2  scope and scale and it is necessary for future

          3  administrations to embrace this effort for its

          4  potential to be fully realized.

          5                 Codifying the sustainability agenda

          6  in the law, as Intro. 395 does, will help ensure

          7  full implementation of this effort.

          8                 In addition to codifying this

          9  sustainability agenda into law, the legislation also

         10  requires the City to develop metrics to demonstrate

         11  the City's compliance with specific policies.

         12                 Metrics are a key took in evaluating

         13  individual agency performance and enhancing agency

         14  accountability. Their required use is an important

         15  component of a sustainability agenda, as the public

         16  can track the City's implementation efforts over

         17  time.

         18                 Recognizing the significance of a

         19  sustainability agenda to the health and vitality of

         20  New York City's environment, as well as the

         21  long-term planning central to its proper

         22  implementation, the New York League of Conservation

         23  Voters fully supports Intro. 395. Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank
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          2  you, Craig.

          3                 Mr. Garvin.

          4                 MR. GARVIN: My name is Chris Garvin.

          5  I'm with Cook Plus Fox Architects, and I'd like to

          6  thank you for putting together this Intro. Bill 395.

          7  And as a member of the Architectural community, I'd

          8  like to commend you and your Committee on the

          9  development of an important legislation to establish

         10  a comprehensive environmental action plan in New

         11  York City, and a Mayoral appointee to direct the

         12  City's efforts to protect all its inhabitants in

         13  coming generations.

         14                 Following the passage of Local Law 86

         15  to develop City Finance Green Buildings, and Local

         16  Law 224.1 on Green Building standards, this

         17  legislation will lay the groundwork for a shift to

         18  environmentally progressive planning and development

         19  in the City.

         20                 Global warming is the greatest issue

         21  facing our generation, and this legislation will

         22  focus the City's resources and efforts in minimizing

         23  our impacts on the environment.

         24                 Unlike earlier legislation, this

         25  law's breadth will affect every aspect of the City's
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          2  infrastructure, environmental standards and

          3  policies, as well as the quality of life of every

          4  New Yorker.

          5                 This law will catalyze the

          6  transformation of the building industry into the

          7  21st century with higher standards for design and

          8  construction.

          9                 In addition, the affects will extend

         10  far beyond the building industry, and the City's

         11  infrastructure to positively impact for the

         12  following five reasons:

         13                 A permanent Mayoral Sustainability

         14  Office. This initiative will create a permanent

         15  office for Sustainability and Long-term Planning

         16  which is essential to ensure the plan is implemented

         17  through multiple future administrations.

         18                 National leadership. This legislation

         19  will ensure that New York City is a leader in

         20  business, environmental and quality of life issues

         21  that affect every city around the world.

         22                 By implementing a comprehensive

         23  environmental sustainability action plan, we will

         24  join international cities such as London and

         25  Vancouver in moving toward a better world.
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          2                 Increase employment opportunities. By

          3  developing a plan and strategies for implementation,

          4  the City will be investing in the creation of new

          5  private sector markets and new jobs in the region.

          6                 In the building industry, energy

          7  efficiency and carbon dioxides will lead to the

          8  integration of new technology into buildings. Water

          9  conservation targets will spur the development of

         10  stormwater and reuse systems, and improved recycling

         11  will produce small businesses that reuse materials

         12  for new products and services. In setting renewable

         13  energy targets, the city will increase demand for

         14  alternative energy generation in the region by the

         15  private sector.

         16                 Regional Coordination of

         17  Sustainability Efforts. By creating a comprehensive

         18  plan, the multiple agencies of the City and of other

         19  regional areas may be coordinated to have a greater

         20  effect on the plan's targets.

         21                 In addition, taxpayer money will be

         22  more effectively focused and held more accountable

         23  for its impact on the environment.

         24                 Increase the City's environmental and

         25  energy security. By auditing the existing
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          2  infrastructure to develop an action plan for the

          3  city, this legislation will insure that all citizens

          4  have a healthy environment, affordable clean energy,

          5  and safe regional transportation. By increasing

          6  energy efficiency, reducing stormwater runoff,

          7  sustainability targets will improve the quality of

          8  life for every citizen of New York.

          9                 I do feel that the current draft

         10  legislation could be strengthened in the following

         11  manner to ensure success of our ambitious efforts in

         12  the following three ways:

         13                 Create Clear Goals. Vision goals,

         14  such as addressing carbon dioxide emissions and

         15  improving the quality of life, and defined targets,

         16  such as continual carbon emissions reduction goals

         17  similar to other cities and countries are both

         18  needed to direct the actions of the advisor

         19  committee and the mayor's office.

         20                 Create a permanent advisory

         21  committee. This plan will need to be revised and

         22  updated as new technologies develop and a greater

         23  understanding of our natural environment evolves.

         24                 In order to accomplish this goal, a

         25  permanent advisory committee is needed to confirm
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          2  that the decisions are in line with scientific and

          3  business communities' point of view.

          4                 In addition, the advisory committee

          5  could add continuity between administrations.

          6                 Furthermore, members should serve for

          7  a defined amount of time and vacancies should be

          8  filled within 60 days.

          9                 Define enforcement provisions.

         10  Currently, the proposed legislation does not have a

         11  provision to allow for any type of enforcement of

         12  the goals outlined. The bill should include a public

         13  enforcement mechanism, such as a citizen suit

         14  provision without creating unlimited liability to

         15  the City.

         16                 As a member of the architectural

         17  design profession in the City, I strongly urge you

         18  to improve this proposal and make it law this year

         19  to herald a new era of policy-making that balances

         20  global environmental issues, development and quality

         21  of life from which everyone will benefit.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you all.

         24  And I'm very grateful for all of you being here and

         25  for your views.
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          2                 Eric, I want to thank you for making

          3  sure that we're going to focus on watershed issues.

          4  It's really important that we do that, because even

          5  among the super professionals that will be involved

          6  in this, something that's 100 miles away sometimes

          7  doesn't grab folks' attention. So, you have our

          8  commitment to make sure that we will speak to that.

          9  And thank you.

         10                 And Corrie, thank you for your

         11  testimony. You indicated that, you know, health

         12  indicators was critically important, they be

         13  included in any effort like this, and we'll see to

         14  it that that's the case. We want to thank the

         15  American Lung Association for your great advocacy

         16  and we do appreciate the help that you always give

         17  us.

         18                 And Craig, LCV, what can I say? You

         19  got the Mayor to, like, do this, you know? And so it

         20  was really, really super. I was there at the event,

         21  the Mayor got up there, an LCV event, did the whole

         22  thing, and it was great advocacy on the part of LCV.

         23  Please say hi to Marcia for me. I know I'll be

         24  seeing her tomorrow. And good job. Good job, LCV.

         25                 Mr. Garvin, very grateful to you and
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          2  to Mr. Cook, who wrote this testimony, and to Mr.

          3  Fox, who will be serving on the advisory committee.

          4  I'm very grateful for the last page of you testimony

          5  where you, you know, thoughtfully laid out sort of a

          6  refined vision for what 395 can be, and it's going

          7  to be great having Bob on the Advisory Committee.

          8  So, I want to thank all of you.

          9                 But let me just throw out one

         10  question. You know, 395, you heard the

         11  Administration sort of posture on that. Any

         12  thoughts? Any comments that you may wish to make

         13  about how this can proceed forward in the best

         14  fashion?

         15                 Any general observations you have

         16  regarding the posture of the Administration towards

         17  395? It's a trick question, you see? It's a trick

         18  question.

         19                 You all support 395 and that's

         20  wonderful, and all of your organizations are deeply

         21  involved. Directly by having members of the

         22  Committee who will serve and the American Lung

         23  Association which will be represented by me.

         24                 So, Eric.

         25                 MR. GOLDSTEIN: Just one thing. If the
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          2  question is one of time, it would seem to me that

          3  that is probably something that you could work out

          4  with the Administration.

          5                 If, in fact, the Administration

          6  indicates to you in follow-up conversations that

          7  it's committed to advancing legislation that

          8  incorporates the principles that you have set forth

          9  in your bill, it seems to me that there probably is

         10  a way in which the Council and the Administration

         11  can see eye to eye on this. And so, in that sense,

         12  with a firm commitment from them, you know, I would

         13  suggest that there is a way in which you would work

         14  out the time. And if you can't get that commitment

         15  from them, then, you know, I would suggest you move

         16  forward with the bill of revised form, taking into

         17  account the announcement that was made last week.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 Thank you, Eric.

         20                 Overall, I get a good feeling from

         21  the Administration and their deep commitment to this

         22  issue, and they really ramped up in a great way and

         23  I know they take this really seriously, and that's

         24  all good.

         25                 And I want to thank, you know, this
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          2  panel and all the advocates here in a special way

          3  for really helping to drive the City's agenda on

          4  this. It's been you folks who labor in the vineyard,

          5  you know, day in and day out that have really pushed

          6  us to this precipice where we are today, on the

          7  brink of doing something, you know, really great on

          8  this issue.

          9                 Mr. Garvin.

         10                 MR. GARVIN: In regard to Rohit's

         11  testimony, I would like to comment regarding sort of

         12  the more the process and the infrastructural concern

         13  that I see regarding the multiple agencies sort of

         14  ramping up and addressing these ideas and

         15  implementing them, as well as some of the road

         16  blocks with OME and other parts of the government,

         17  and the budget sort of issues of capital budgets

         18  versus operational budgets that cause a lot of

         19  resistance to addressing, in particular energy

         20  efficiency and how something that core to the City's

         21  operation, how can that actually be addressed to

         22  really spur this, these ideas into implementation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, certainly

         24  that's duly noted, but it's my hope that due to the

         25  Mayor's extraordinarily public and emphatic embrace
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          2  of this issue that will help to clear the way for

          3  some of those impediments. So, as I said, everyone

          4  is engaged, we're doing this thing, everyone is at

          5  the table and it's certainly my belief that

          6  something very, very good is going to come from all

          7  this, thanks to the many years of effort that you

          8  all have put forward to make sure that we do this.

          9                 Thank you very much for being here

         10  today.

         11                 Hey, Craig, I didn't know you got

         12  this new hotshot job. Good for you. Congratulations.

         13  Good for you. That's great.

         14                 I have to take a one and a half

         15  minute break. While I'm doing that, Donna will

         16  announce the next panel and give notice to the next

         17  panel after that.

         18                 So, Donna, if you could take care of

         19  that, I'll be right back. You do the opening and

         20  everything and I'll come back.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Adam Friedman, Leah

         22  Archibald, and I hope I'm pronouncing this right,

         23  Zoilo Torres, the New York City Apollo Alliance.

         24                 And the panel after that, just to

         25  give you notice, will be Bob Muldoon from the Sierra
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          2  Club, Gavin Kearny from the New York Lawyers for the

          3  Public Interest, Kizzy Charles-Guzman from WE ACT,

          4  and David Weinberg from Consumers Union. And there

          5  will be one more panel after that as well.

          6                 Please raise your right hand.

          7                 In the testimony that you're about to

          8  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          9  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         10                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

         13  Thank you all for being here. I appreciate it.

         14                 Adam, why don't we start with you?

         15                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you. Good

         16  morning. I'm Adam Friedman, Executive Director of

         17  the New York Industrial Retention Network.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

         19  statement, Adam, or just -- I have so many

         20  statements in front of me, I want to make sure I

         21  have yours.

         22                 MR. FRIEDMAN: It's on its way.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Sergeant,

         24  can I have a copy of Apollo? I've got ITAC, I'm

         25  getting warmer.
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          2                 MR. FRIEDMAN: They're good but

          3  they're not us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Bingo.

          5                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

          7  the opportunity to testify this morning in support

          8  of Intro. 395 and the creation of a comprehensive

          9  sustainability action plan for New York City.

         10                 NYIRN is a Citywide non-profit

         11  organization that promotes a healthy manufacturing

         12  center based on principles of economic and

         13  environmental justice and sustainability.

         14                 With support from the City Council

         15  over the past four years, NYIRN has significantly

         16  increased its education and outreach efforts to the

         17  manufacturers about sustainable development and the

         18  opportunities that it creates.

         19                 We believe sustainability is good for

         20  business. In 2005 NYIRN collaborated with ITAC to

         21  publish Building Green, a study documenting how

         22  increased construction of high performance

         23  energy-efficient buildings is creating demand for

         24  new local green products.

         25                 In August of this year, NYIRN and

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  ITAC released Manufacturing Green, a second study

          3  looking at the capacity of New York City

          4  manufacturers to meet those demands and the City

          5  policies that would help them.

          6                 In response, with the support of the

          7  Speaker and Chairman Gennaro, we will be launching a

          8  green manufacturing initiative to strengthen the

          9  Green supply chain, linking architects, developers

         10  and contractors with local manufacturers, in

         11  promoting Made In NYC brand to increase green

         12  manufacturing in New York.

         13                 The Bloomberg Administration has

         14  shown tremendous vision in confronting the

         15  challenges and seizing the opportunities presented

         16  by sustainable development. Its convening of an

         17  advisory group of experts and stakeholders and its

         18  efforts to weave sustainable development principles

         19  throughout the City policy, could lay the foundation

         20  for decades of sustainable growth.

         21                 To ensure that this foundation is

         22  strong and provides the predictability and

         23  confidence businesses need to locate, to invest, to

         24  hire and to create jobs. It should be reinforced

         25  through legislation. The proposed Sustainability
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          2  Action Plan will provide a vehicle for addressing

          3  issues and coming up with specific steps to ensure

          4  implementation, accountability and longevity.

          5                 There are several issues which we

          6  believe this sort of collaboration will be

          7  particularly important.

          8                 First, one of the best ways the City

          9  can help foster Green manufacturing in the growth of

         10  green collar jobs is by using its purchasing power

         11  to drive the market.

         12                 While it is not cited as a specific

         13  category in the legislation, issues pertaining to

         14  the City's procurement activities should be included

         15  in the sustainability plan.

         16                 Second, the City's Land Use policies

         17  should obviously reinforce the City's efforts to

         18  promote sustainability.

         19                 The Administration's earlier comments

         20  about the integration of a comprehensive Land Use

         21  plan and the sustainability plan are welcome, but it

         22  should be made clear, perhaps through this

         23  legislation, that proposed zoning changes should

         24  also be treated as the policies and practices

         25  specified in Section 20(b)(4) that will be evaluated
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          2  in part by the extent to which they promote or

          3  undermine a community or the City's sustainability.

          4                 For example, a zoning change in

          5  Gowanus which undermines its working waterfront

          6  could divert materials now carried by barge onto

          7  trucks. An estimate produced by the Southwest

          8  Brooklyn Industrial Development Corporation is that

          9  this could result in 46,980 additional truck trips

         10  and raise the cost to several recycling operations

         11  that are now on the Gowanus.

         12                 I look forward to working with the

         13  Council and the Administration to making New York a

         14  model for sustainable urban growth.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Adam.

         17  I appreciate that.

         18                 Leah.

         19                 MS. ARCHIBALD: Hello. My name is Leah

         20  Archibald and I'm the Communications Director of the

         21  Industrial and Technology Assistance Corporation,

         22  otherwise known as ITAC. I'm also here to support

         23  Intro. 395, which we at ITAC believe will foster an

         24  environmentally sensitive and sustainable local

         25  economy in New York City.
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          2                 Just a little background, ITAC

          3  provides in-depth technical assistance to New York

          4  City manufacturing and technology businesses to help

          5  them hone their competitive edge and grow.

          6                 We, too, want to commend the City

          7  Council for taking the leadership position on

          8  sustainability, with this and other recent policy.

          9  It isn't just good government, this is good business

         10  too.

         11                 As we learned from the Manufacturing

         12  Green Report, which Adam mentioned that NYIRN and

         13  ITAC released last month, demand for

         14  environmentally-sensitive products is on the rise.

         15  Business to business demand for green products is

         16  especially strong throughout the construction supply

         17  chain here in New York City.

         18                 Sustainable development policies

         19  create opportunities for New York City's small

         20  manufacturing and technology businesses. Their

         21  proximity and flexibility make these firms ideally

         22  suited to create sustainable solutions for New York

         23  City. We need to foster innovation in these

         24  industries.

         25                 These companies want to stay in New
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          2  York. We need to provide them with the assistance

          3  that they need to stay on the cutting edge. The

          4  green market is perfect for New York City companies,

          5  which tend to be entrepreneurial and

          6  design-oriented.

          7                 These attributes, combined with New

          8  York's academic research resources, make New York

          9  City a fertile location for product innovation.

         10                 ITAC would like to see assistance

         11  programs developed to help New York City firms

         12  replace aging infrastructure with state-of-the-art

         13  environmental technologies to help them develop

         14  greener products and green up their processes.

         15                 We would like manufacturing and

         16  technology firms to be included in the way the City

         17  develops policy, and that embraces the principles of

         18  sustainability. ITAC is happy to support the efforts

         19  of the sustainability task force by helping to

         20  identify the needs of New York City firms and assess

         21  the types of assistance programs that will most

         22  effectively encourage sustainable practices in New

         23  York City businesses.

         24                 ITAC has been working with local

         25  manufacturers and technology businesses to encourage
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          2  innovation and help them stay competitive, and on

          3  behalf of our organization, I want to thank the City

          4  Council and the Administration for making

          5  sustainable initiatives a priority.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          7  you, Leah.

          8                 MR. TORRES: It's almost good

          9  afternoon. My name is Zoilo Torres, and I am the

         10  Campaign Director for the New York City Alliance, a

         11  project of urban agenda.

         12                 New York City Apollo is a coalition

         13  of labor unions, environmental justice advocates,

         14  business educators and community-based organizations

         15  that believes that New York City can become a locust

         16  of economic growth and high living standards by

         17  adopting a modern energy policy and promote

         18  renewable energy and energy efficiency.

         19                 We applaud Intro. No. 395 and the

         20  steps it takes to codify into law a comprehensive

         21  environmental sustainability action plan for New

         22  York City.

         23                 This intro, if enacted, promises to

         24  bring together all the practical policy elements

         25  necessary to assure that our future economic
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          2  development is environmentally safe, sustainable and

          3  helps wean the country away from reliance on fossil

          4  fuels.

          5                 We are also encouraged by Mayor

          6  Bloomberg's newly initiated Office of Long-term

          7  Planning and sustainability and Sustainability

          8  Advisory Board.

          9                 We are especially optimistic, given

         10  the prominent role that the Council Member Gennaro

         11  and Speaker Quinn acclaim and the willingness of the

         12  Administration and the City Council to work

         13  together.

         14                 The passage of 395 will ensure that

         15  future administrations will not deviate from the

         16  fine path this Administration and the Council have

         17  taken with respect to protecting our environment and

         18  the economic development of this great City.

         19                 Intro. 395 creates a partnership

         20  between the Mayor and the Speaker of the Council in

         21  the formulation of a comprehensive environmental

         22  sustainability action plan that will contain

         23  specific goals, measurable indicators, and

         24  achievable targets with milestones and time lines

         25  that can be instrumental in evaluating the plan's
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          2  effective implementation.

          3                 The legislation also calls for

          4  identification and eradication of rules and

          5  regulations and practices that act as barriers to

          6  sustainable development policies and projects. All

          7  this is direly needed, because there is much to be

          8  done that should not be delayed any longer.

          9                 The City Council has always cited in

         10  Local Law 86 that in New York City, and I quote,

         11  most of its electricity is produced locally and many

         12  of its buildings use oil or natural gas for their

         13  heating and water energy consumption and the

         14  building's operation translates into greater local

         15  pollution, including emissions of sulfur dioxide,

         16  nitrogen oxide, particulate matter, carbon dioxide

         17  and mercury. These pollutants contribute to

         18  respiratory diseases, heart disease, smog, acid

         19  rain, and climate change.

         20                 Moreover, as energy demand rises, so

         21  does our reliance on dirty, inefficient power

         22  plants, as well as our nation's dependence on

         23  foreign oil and natural gas.

         24                 Ladies and gentlemen of the Council,

         25  to your credit you have recognized that this
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          2  situation is environmentally unsustainable, and

          3  economically untenable. We need a plan to build and

          4  rebuild our City that is driven by renewable power,

          5  like solar, wind, hydro, geothermal and biomass

          6  fuels. We need a comprehensive sustainability action

          7  plan with teeth attached to its implementation, one

          8  that all future City administrations will be legally

          9  obliged to carry out. A piecemeal approach will only

         10  prolong the work that is already overdue.

         11                 We cannot delay retrofitting the

         12  City's 1,300 buildings. The New York City Apollo

         13  Alliance calls on the City to lead by example and

         14  begin by immediately retrofitting the 100 lease

         15  energy efficient buildings. This would not only be a

         16  good beginning towards retrofitting our entire

         17  building stock, it would also send the proper

         18  message to the private sector that the era of

         19  sustainable development has arrived.

         20                 The plan should seek to accelerate

         21  the building or conversion of all City public

         22  schools to healthy and high performance status. This

         23  very important work should begin in communities

         24  where childhood asthma is unusually high, like East

         25  and Central Harlem, the South Bronx and Bushwick in
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          2  Brooklyn. And the dollars that are saved should be

          3  reinvested in our children's education.

          4                 We need an action plan that ensures

          5  that all existing or newly constructed affordable

          6  housing be made quality green affordable housing.

          7  All this and more will produce economic prosperity

          8  by creating skilled, well-paying jobs in

          9  construction and manufacturing and the building and

         10  maintenance trades.

         11                 Economic development should be

         12  perceived as an integral part of a comprehensive

         13  environmental sustainability action plan.

         14                 In closing, the New York City Apollo

         15  Alliance is committed to the issues I have outlined.

         16  We look forward to working with the Council and the

         17  Mayor on this important work and applaud your

         18  efforts to develop a comprehensive environmental

         19  sustainability action plan that is enshrined in law.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Torres. And I know that with Ed Ott serving on the

         23  Advisory Committee that the point of view of New

         24  York Apollo and Urban Agenda and the Labor Movement

         25  will be well represented, and I thank you, the
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          2  Apollo Alliance and Urban Agenda for all that you

          3  do. Thank you. Thank you.

          4                 And Leah and Adam, this is a great

          5  panel because what the three of you are all about is

          6  how state ability makes great economic sense, and

          7  you know, you've all done so much to put that

          8  forward, and we look forward to working with you,

          9  Adam, on the new building green initiative and the

         10  whole thing we just did during the budget and one

         11  thing that I'm committed to making sure that the

         12  advisory committee does is we have to make New York

         13  City the capital of the -- the building movement

         14  capital of the Environmental Products Movement,

         15  capital of the Sustainability Movement. All the

         16  products and services that are needed for this

         17  initiative to work here, and around the country. We

         18  should be the capital. We should be the

         19  environmental Detroit, the environmental Silicon

         20  Valley. I've always said that, and I think getting

         21  all of these folks together will be a great

         22  opportunity for us to move that agenda forward and I

         23  thank you in a special way for being the ones who

         24  have always been on the ground making sure that

         25  consciousness kind of percolated up, and now it has
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          2  and so we thank you for that.

          3                 Appreciate you being here.

          4                 Okay, the next panel. Gavin Kearney,

          5  New York Lawyers for the Public Interest; Bob

          6  Muldoon from the Sierra Club. I've got two folks

          7  here from WE ACT. I don't know which is going to be

          8  testifying. Kizzy Charles-Guzman and Anthony, looks

          9  like -- oh, pardon me, Anhthu Huang. So, I don't

         10  know who is going to be testifying for WE ACT. Is

         11  Gavin here? Okay, fine.

         12                 We have five witnesses. We've got

         13  Gavin, we've got Bob, and David.

         14                 MR. WEINBERG: David.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sorry?

         16                 MR. WEINBERG: David Weinberg.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, okay, fine.

         18  You're going to be on the next panel.

         19                 MR. WEINBERG: Oh, I'm sorry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But by the power

         21  vested in me, you're on this panel. See, I can do

         22  that.

         23                 MR. WEINBERG: Sorry to cut in line.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm a powerful

         25  government leader and just by fiat I can put you on
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          2  this panel just like that.

          3                 So, Donna will swear you all in and

          4  then we can start with Gavin and proceed to the

          5  right.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          7  right hand.

          8                 In the testimony that you're about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 (Witnesses sworn.)

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Sergeant, if

         14  I could have the statement for Gavin of the New York

         15  Lawyers of the Public Interest, I would at least

         16  have something to get started with.

         17                 So, David, you're right in the panel

         18  here. That's it. You're in.

         19                 MR. WEINBERG: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You're in. How

         21  are we doing?

         22                 Okay, Gavin, I've got you.

         23                 MR. KEARNEY: Okay. Good morning,

         24  Chairperson Gennaro, other members of the Committee

         25  on Environmental Protection, and thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to provide testimony today.

          3                 My name is Gavin Kearney. I'm a staff

          4  attorney with New York Lawyers for the Public

          5  Interest. New York Lawyers is a non-profit civil

          6  rights law firm formed in 1976 to address the unmet

          7  legal needs of New Yorkers.

          8                 In 1991, New York Lawyers formed its

          9  environmental justice and community development

         10  project to represent communities of color and

         11  low-income communities in environmental justice

         12  matters in New York, and my comments today draw on

         13  the experience and knowledge that we have gained

         14  over that time period.

         15                 At the outset, I'd like to thank this

         16  Committee and the Council as a whole for the

         17  leadership that it has displayed in pursuing

         18  environmentally sound, sustainable and just policy.

         19                 For example, New York Lawyers was

         20  heavily involved in the push for an equitable and an

         21  environmentally sound solid waste management system,

         22  and the SWMP that passed recently through the

         23  Council and the Administration represents a major

         24  step towards that goal.

         25                 Over the last several years, the
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          2  Council has also taken leadership on other important

          3  pieces of legislation, many of which were detailed

          4  by Chairperson Gennaro at the beginning of this

          5  meeting.

          6                 Like many of the EJ advocates and

          7  communities that we work with, a number of whom are

          8  also represented here today and submitting

          9  testimony, I am very heartened by the emphasis on

         10  sustainable policy and practice that is emerging

         11  from both the Council and the Mayor's Office.

         12                 We realize the tremendous potential

         13  sustainability for promoting the well-being of all

         14  New Yorkers, present and future.

         15                 Moreover, low-income communities of

         16  color in New York City too often bear the

         17  disproportionate burden in the present day of past

         18  conditions and practices in the form of contaminated

         19  land, hazardous exposures, lack of access to

         20  greenspace, and unhealthy work environments.

         21                 Ultimately these burdens manifest

         22  themselves in poorer health outcomes, such as higher

         23  incidence of disease and lowered-life expectancy.

         24                 We look forward to working with the

         25  Council and with the Mayor's Office as these
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          2  sustainability efforts move forward, and in the

          3  spirit of collaboration I offer these few

          4  recommendations to further strengthen what we

          5  consider to be an important intro.

          6                 First, we recommend that this intro

          7  require that equity be an affirmative goal of the

          8  sustainability plan, and that progress under the

          9  plan be evaluated accordingly. In other words, that

         10  we pursue just sustainability.

         11                 As we all know, the benefits and

         12  burdens of governmental policy and practice are too

         13  often distributed in an inequitable manner. As we

         14  develop a plan for meeting the needs of the present

         15  generation of New Yorkers, without jeopardizing the

         16  ability of future New Yorkers to do likewise, it is

         17  critical to ensure that present and future needs of

         18  all communities are taken into consideration.

         19                 Accomplishing this requires, among

         20  other things, that we consider the present health

         21  and environmental status of different communities.

         22                 It also requires that we consider and

         23  account for the extent to which policies may impact

         24  communities differently because of characteristics

         25  such as health status and income, and to accomplish
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          2  this, goals and strategies may need to be adapted to

          3  particular communities.

          4                 In order to pursue sustainability, we

          5  also need to evaluate whether some communities have

          6  greater needs in the priority areas identified in

          7  this intro.

          8                 For example, air quality and

          9  hazardous waste exposure are not uniform across the

         10  City. Pursuing sustainable policy for the City as a

         11  whole will require that these differences are

         12  addressed.

         13                 When measuring progress toward

         14  sustainability, it is important that in addition to

         15  measuring overall progress, we also disaggregate

         16  these measures to ensure the desired results are

         17  being achieved throughout the City, and to ensure

         18  that summary measures do not gloss over relevant and

         19  perhaps unexpected differences.

         20                 While the current Intro would require

         21  progress to be measured by specific community where

         22  appropriate, I recommend that this qualifier be

         23  removed and that progress always be measured across

         24  communities.

         25                 The second recommendation that I
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          2  would offer is that the intro be strengthened in

          3  terms of public participation and oversight.

          4                 In order to ensure the effective

          5  development and implementation of the sustainability

          6  action plan, I recommend that the public

          7  participation of oversight elements of Intro. 395 be

          8  strengthened in the following ways:

          9                 First, in addition to requiring

         10  public hearings following issuance of the draft

         11  plan, require public hearings at the outset of the

         12  process so that the development of the draft plan

         13  can benefit from a broad assessment of needs across

         14  New York City, and from the broad input of all New

         15  Yorkers as the plan is taking shape, rather than

         16  after the plan is largely formed.

         17                 Second, require public hearings on a

         18  biannual basis during the implementation of the

         19  plan, to ensure that New Yorkers are apprised of the

         20  successes and ongoing challenges of the effort and

         21  to ensure that they have the opportunity to ask

         22  questions and offer suggestions for improving upon

         23  results.

         24                 Third, increase the frequency of the

         25  comprehensive reviews currently required every five
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          2  years under the intro to at least every two years.

          3                 Although reporting requirements

          4  should not be onerous or detract from the

          5  accomplishment of goals, these reviews will be

          6  critical to ensuring sustained progress toward

          7  sustainability.

          8                 And, finally, expand the role and

          9  duration of the advisory committee, as many others

         10  have suggested already today, to encompass oversight

         11  of and consultation on plan implementation, as well

         12  as to participate in development of a plan.

         13                 Thank you again for the opportunity

         14  to provide testimony and for your consideration of

         15  these recommendations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         17  Gavin. We will have everyone's testimony and then

         18  have your questions or comments.

         19                 MR. KEARNEY: Of course.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         21  Gavin.

         22                 Bob.

         23                 MR. MULDOON: My name is Bob Muldoon,

         24  an Associate Regional Representative with the

         25  national Sierra Club field office in New York City.
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          2                 Sierra Club is one of the nation's

          3  oldest and largest grassroots environmental

          4  organizations.

          5                 Today we're testifying in support of

          6  Intro. 395. We applaud the Mayor in taking the

          7  initiative last week in announcing the creation of

          8  the Office of Sustainability. This may truly be an

          9  exciting new era in environmental planning for the

         10  City of New York. However, this legislation is still

         11  needed in order to strengthen the City Council

         12  oversight of the development and implementation of

         13  the plan, and to assure that the Office will

         14  continue beyond the current administration.

         15  Especially given that a plan of this magnitude will

         16  take years to implement.

         17                 This new effort on the part of the

         18  City could not come a minute too soon. As we all

         19  know, New York City is on the front lines of global

         20  warming. If the data and trends on glacial melt and

         21  climate change play out later in the coming decades,

         22  we may face persistent heat waves, rising sea levels

         23  and storm surges that could threaten our City.

         24                 NASA scientist James Hansen has

         25  called the next ten years critical in determining
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          2  whether or not we will stem the tide of global

          3  warming and avert a weather catastrophe. In fact, he

          4  has called for a 60 to 80 percent reduction in

          5  fossil fuel emissions in order to stabilize

          6  atmospheric carbon dioxide and give us a fighting

          7  chance at copying with this environmental dilemma.

          8  This is a tall order, especially given the passive

          9  policies on the part of the Bush Administration and

         10  Congress.

         11                 As challenging as this sounds, the

         12  good news is that practical solutions can

         13  dramatically reduce our greenhouse gases; namely,

         14  energy efficiency, and reducing our dependence on

         15  fossil fuels.

         16                 Like many, organizations today,

         17  Sierra Club is doubling our efforts to promote these

         18  solutions.

         19                 Last year our volunteer leaders from

         20  across the country voted to make energy and global

         21  warming our number one priority.

         22                 We also launched a national Cool

         23  Cities effort to counter the lack of progress at the

         24  national level.

         25                 Sierra Club's Cool Cities campaign
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          2  builds on the leadership of Seattle Mayor Greg

          3  Nickels, who got the Conference of Mayors to

          4  unanimously adopt the Mayors' Climate Protection

          5  Agreement.

          6                 As we all know, this agreement is --

          7  cities around the country sign onto the agreement

          8  and agree to meet or beat the Kyoto targets to

          9  reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 7 percent below

         10  1990 levels by 2012. Pretty reasonable target.

         11                 With the help of our volunteers

         12  around the country, and the continuing momentum of

         13  the movement of the Mayor's conference, the number

         14  of cities that have adopted this pledge has grown

         15  from 163 to over 290 in less than a year.

         16                 Our Cool Cities campaign organizes

         17  our volunteers to recruit more and more local

         18  governments to sign on to the Mayors' Agreement. In

         19  addition, our volunteers work to see that the cities

         20  implement our Cool Cities solutions of greenfleets,

         21  energy efficiency and renewable energy.

         22                 The number of cities signing on to

         23  the Mayors' Agreement is just part of the growing

         24  momentum at the state and local level.

         25                 As we all know, California has taken
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          2  the lead with recent laws to cap greenhouse gas

          3  emissions from cars and power plants.

          4                 Cities across the country have also

          5  acted to become leaders in this movement, as well.

          6                 Seattle of course led the effort with

          7  the Mayors' Conference and Mayors' Agreement, and

          8  they also created a green ribbon commission of

          9  leaders from public and private sectors that came up

         10  with a plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

         11  across the City.

         12                 Chicago Mayor Richard Daley has

         13  declared that he will make Chicago the greenest city

         14  in the nation, moving forward with the Green Roof

         15  Program, recruiting two solar panel manufacturers

         16  that set up shop downtown and moving forward with

         17  the plan for this City.

         18                 And San Francisco has undertaken an

         19  effort to be the largest producer of renewable

         20  energy, passing a $100 million bond act to finance

         21  solar projects, and covering the new Moscone

         22  convention center with solar panels.

         23                 Intro. 395 is New York City's

         24  opportunity to assert its place in this movement.

         25                 We feel the primary focus should be
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          2  global warming plan, as I was happy to hear about

          3  this morning from the new Director of the Office.

          4                 We seek a plan to reduce greenhouse

          5  gas emissions, while also assessing the impact of

          6  climate change, as we laid out in a letter to the

          7  Mayor in June, and I can get that for you.

          8                 Another major component should be an

          9  energy plan that addresses buildings and

         10  transportation, energy conservation and efficiency

         11  is much cheaper than building new powerplants.

         12                 New construction and major renovation

         13  in the City needs to become much more efficient in

         14  their use of energy and water.

         15                 For example, the City needs to offer

         16  incentives for the installation of green building

         17  technology, such as green roof, thermal systems,

         18  gray water reuse systems, solar panels and more.

         19                 The City should also seek to build on

         20  the successful programs that we have noticed in

         21  terms of New York City Housing Authority's

         22  Refrigerator Exchange Program, that replaced 180,000

         23  old refrigerators with new efficient ones, saving $7

         24  million annually. Perhaps a similar program could be

         25  applied to rental housing in the City, where
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          2  landlords do not have an incentive to buy new

          3  refrigerators because they do not pay the

          4  electricity. And the City should seek ways to

          5  encourage successful buy-back programs, like the

          6  NYSERDA Statewide bounty that removed over 175,000

          7  inefficient room air conditioners.

          8                 We also need to build sustainable

          9  infrastructure in the City and set sustainable

         10  transportation policy, such as congestion,

         11  mitigation and pricing and creating more

         12  pedestrian-friendly areas.

         13                 We are pleased with the City's recent

         14  announcement to construct 200 miles of new bike

         15  paths and hope this can be implemented quickly.

         16                 Another critical component is

         17  addressing New York City's huge and costly waste

         18  problem. Sierra Club urges the City to move ahead

         19  and adopt a goal of zero waste.

         20                 Just a few years ago, a majority of

         21  the City Council signed on to sponsor Zero Waste

         22  Resolution. Reuse and recycling industries can

         23  create numerous jobs while saving the City money and

         24  increasing its sustainability.

         25                 In closing, Intro. 395 is a good step
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          2  forward; however, companion legislation will still

          3  be needed. Leadership by the City Council will still

          4  be needed as well, to spell out provisions of the

          5  plan in areas of global warming, energy and solid

          6  waste.

          7                 The effort to implement a good

          8  comprehensive environmental sustainability action

          9  plan will be challenging as we all know, and we look

         10  forward to working with the City Council and

         11  organizations throughout the City, to maintain and

         12  expand this effort.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Bob.

         15                 MR. WEINBERG: Good afternoon. I am

         16  David Weinberg. I'm with Consumers' Union. I also

         17  represent New York City Zero Waste Campaign, and I

         18  want to thank you, Chairman Gennaro, for the

         19  opportunity to speak today on this bill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Just

         21  before, I have your comments, the Zero Waste

         22  Campaign?

         23                 MR. WEINBERG: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And I've also

         25  got a statement from Barbara Warren.
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          2                 MR. WEINBERG: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's for the

          4  record, right?

          5                 MR. WEINBERG: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 MR. WEINBERG: First of all, I want to

          8  profusely apologize for jumping the line. I didn't

          9  mean to do that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It was destiny

         11  for some reason.

         12                 MR. WEINBERG: I will be fast, and I

         13  will buy you guys lunch later for going ahead of

         14  you.

         15                 So, my testimony is going to be brief

         16  and I think a little different from what we've heard

         17  this morning, and I want to give sort of concrete,

         18  sort of application as to why we think this bill is

         19  great and why we need this bill.

         20                 Speaking on behalf of Zero Waste,

         21  we're interested in very dramatic reductions in the

         22  amount of waste the City produces over the long

         23  term.

         24                 The City just passed the Solid Waste

         25  Management Plan, which we feel is very important,
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          2  because it does two things: it sort of makes the

          3  City more socially sustainable by creating a more

          4  egalitarian system for moving waste around and out

          5  of the City, and also more environmentally

          6  sustainable for taking trucks off the road and

          7  moving more marine transport. But, you know, what we

          8  are really interested in doing is having a long-term

          9  vision of reducing the amount of waste we produce.

         10                 And in the SWMP there is a good

         11  target, there's a 70 percent target by 2015. But

         12  what we feel is sort of lacking, which would be a

         13  good compliment, which this bill brings to sort of

         14  talk about developing sustainable systems, is

         15  developing specific indicators, specific targets,

         16  and specific programs for actually how that we get

         17  there.

         18                 And although I'm going to talk right

         19  now about just recycling and waste prevention, I

         20  think this is applicable to all the issues,

         21  environmental issues that we've recognized here, in

         22  terms of why this is important.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let me just

         24  state, though, that to the extent that you could

         25  focus your comments on 395, this is a legislative
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          2  hearing, of course, on that bill, and I just don't

          3  want to give you too much latitude to get too much

          4  into the Solid Waste Management Plan. You know there

          5  is a whole separate hearing structuring committee

          6  that kind of deals with that.

          7                 So, comments on Solid Waste

          8  Management Plan as examples, as the point you're

          9  trying to make on 395, you know, I just want to make

         10  sure that we don't go too far. I'll give you a

         11  little latitude --

         12                 MR. WEINBERG: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But not a lot.

         14                 MR. WEINBERG: To give an example of

         15  what we think is a good sustainability plan, which

         16  is already out there which the City has adopted

         17  would be Chicago. They have a 20-year sustainability

         18  action plan of five and ten year, 20-year goals, and

         19  we think that's a very good example. What they do,

         20  they have goals for intermediate, long-term for

         21  residential, commercial, city facility recycling --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Chicago does?

         23                 MR. WEINBERG: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They have the

         25  plan already? They have it?
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          2                 MR. WEINBERG: Yes. I can provide you

          3  with this. It's available on their website.

          4                 And they also identify sort of new

          5  materials for diversion. By 2020, we want to get 80

          6  percent of organics out of the waste stream. So, we

          7  feel that's a City that we can look to that's

          8  already done this sort of planning and

          9  sustainability, which New York City should strive to

         10  emulate as well.

         11                 You know, to close with this, in

         12  talking like articulating and developing new

         13  programs to reach sustainability, we feel that's

         14  very, very important. For example, in New York City

         15  we only really target 35 percent of the waste stream

         16  right now for diversion. In reaching much better

         17  diversion goals, obviously part of what has to be

         18  there is specific programs in how we get to 50

         19  percent, 70 percent targeting, and the SWMP again

         20  took some great steps, created this new recycling

         21  office, but in terms of having a sustainable plan

         22  for solid waste, you know, like building that office

         23  is probably, would probably be part of the

         24  sustainability action plan.

         25                 So, I mean, our campaign feels that
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          2  this bill is very important because in moving ahead

          3  on sustainability we need to have a plan that

          4  specifically does these three things. So, again,

          5  this is just complimentary that the SWMP does, but I

          6  think it's applicable to all the areas and we very

          7  strongly support it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, Mr. Weinberg. Say hi to Barbara for us as well.

         10  She's a great lady.

         11                 MR. WEINBERG: I will.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, please. And

         13  you are?

         14                 MS. CHARLES-GUZMAN: Kizzy

         15  Charles-Guzman, from WE ACT for Environmental

         16  Justice.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Fine, okay.

         18  Continue.

         19                 MS. CHARLES-GUZMAN: Good morning,

         20  Chairman Gennaro, and members of the Committee.

         21  Again, my name is Kizzy Charles-Guzman. I'm the

         22  Policy Coordinator for WE ACT Environmental Justice,

         23  and this is Anhthu Hoang, who is our General

         24  Counsel, and today we'll be jointly delivering our

         25  testimony on behalf of WE ACT for Environmental
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          2  Justice.

          3                 We are an 18-year-old community-based

          4  organization, working to build community power to

          5  fight environmental racism, and improve

          6  environmental health, protection and policy in

          7  communities of color.

          8                 WE ACT's mission is to inform,

          9  educate, train and mobilize the predominantly

         10  African-American and Latino residents of Northern

         11  Manhattan, on issues that impact their quality of

         12  life, air, water and indoor pollution, toxics, land

         13  use and open space, waterfront development and

         14  usage, sanitation, transportation, historic

         15  preservation, regulatory enforcement and citizen

         16  participation and public policy making.

         17                 We would like to thank the Committee

         18  for the opportunity to provide comment on Intro.

         19  395, to create and implement a comprehensive

         20  environmental sustainability action plan for the

         21  City of New York.

         22                 We commend Chairman Gennaro and the

         23  members of the Committee for their consistent and

         24  tireless leadership on ensuring the environmental

         25  protection of New York City.
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          2                 In addition to the protective

          3  measures that the present bill affords, WE ACT

          4  recommends that the Council incorporate three key

          5  provisions.

          6                 First, the bill must incorporate

          7  public health protections in the articulated goals

          8  of environmental sustainability.

          9                 Second, there must be opportunity for

         10  public comment on oversight on the development and

         11  periodic review of the sustainability plan.

         12                 And third, the bill must incorporate

         13  a representative from the environmental justice

         14  field and the sustainability action plan advisory

         15  committee.

         16                 The development of a sustainability

         17  plan that is economically sound, environmentally

         18  conscious and equitable for New York City is

         19  critical to protecting our natural resources and

         20  environment, but it also is critical in protecting

         21  the health and well-being of all City residents.

         22                 For this reason, WE ACT believes that

         23  environmental sustainability, in addition to being

         24  defined as the state in which human priorities of

         25  social and economic development do not conflict with
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          2  the protection and function of the natural

          3  environment, must also include measures that ensure

          4  that such activities do not have a negative and

          5  disparate impact on human health and vulnerable

          6  communities.

          7                 One of the premises of environmental

          8  justice as a definition of environment, as the

          9  places where we work, live, pray and play. Under

         10  this definition, we believe that the comprehensive

         11  environmental sustainability action plan must

         12  incorporate strategies to create vibrant and healthy

         13  communities by designing development that includes

         14  the health, social and economic dimensions of

         15  sustainability.

         16                 For example, the plan may require the

         17  location and planning of new developments in ways

         18  that, yes, protect natural areas and habitat, but

         19  also the public health of sensitive and overburdened

         20  areas in order to minimize impacts on public health

         21  and the environment.

         22                 Specifically, the plan may call for

         23  inventories of community-wide public health status,

         24  income levels and distribution of environmental

         25  hazards and locally undesirable land uses, and
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          2  specify those features in official land use plans as

          3  areas to be protected, restored or prioritized.

          4                 Furthermore, the current bill will

          5  require progress to be measured by a specific

          6  community where appropriate.

          7                 And echoing LP's comment, we

          8  recommend that progress always be measured across

          9  communities.

         10                 We'll play tag team here. This is

         11  Anhthu Hoang from WE ACT, and I echo my colleague's

         12  appreciation of the Council's leadership on this

         13  issue, and her support for the bill.

         14                 MS. HOANG: With 395, New York City

         15  joins other municipal leaders in prioritizing

         16  environmental sustainability. As an example, the

         17  City of St. Paul's comprehensive plan prioritizes

         18  human health protection collaterally with

         19  environmental conservation. The forward-thinking

         20  plan includes strategies for accommodation of

         21  population growth, such as providing transit options

         22  for mitigation for noise and light pollution. In

         23  addition to those factors, the St. Paul plan also

         24  incorporates such health promotion measures as

         25  consideration of the walkability of the City to
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          2  ensure reduction in obesity rates of their

          3  population, brownfield redevelopment and clean-up

          4  criteria among other issues that promote health and

          5  the quality of life of all St. Paul residents.

          6                 The success of St. Paul's approach is

          7  exemplified by its landmark reduction and blood lead

          8  level of St. Paul children, which has decreased by

          9  60 percent since 1997.

         10                 St. Paul did this by incorporating

         11  the protection of the indoor environment in its

         12  plan, because low-income communities and communities

         13  of color in New York City live in the worst housing

         14  quality, a broad framework such as St. Paul's is

         15  vital to the continued health of New York City

         16  residents.

         17                 While WE ACT supports the passage of

         18  a sustainability plan for New York City, such a law

         19  must clearly provide a substantial role for

         20  communities and the action plan's periodic review of

         21  its development and implementation.

         22                 The current bill includes at least

         23  one public hearing in each borough and a public

         24  comment period with regards to the draft

         25  sustainability plan.
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          2                 WE ACT strongly supports this measure

          3  and advocates for such oversight to be expended, and

          4  for the continued existence of the Committee and its

          5  ability to oversee the implementation of the plan.

          6                 Similarly, all progress-reviewed

          7  documents must be made available in at least English

          8  and Spanish and made available to the public, not

          9  only through the City's website but also local

         10  community boards and neighborhood libraries.

         11                 Finally, in order to ensure

         12  incorporation of the needs of low-income

         13  communities, and communities of color in the plan,

         14  Intro. 395 incorporates a representative from the

         15  environmental justice field in the sustainability

         16  action plan advisory committee.

         17                 WE ACT strongly supports the

         18  appointment of an advisory committee member by the

         19  Speaker of the Council, as well as the Mayor, but

         20  advocates for this important environmental justice

         21  perspective to be explicitly sought to be part of

         22  the advisory board.

         23                 Environmental justice is not just an

         24  issue, rather it is a framework and a perspective to

         25  be incorporated into all environmental
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          2  sustainability discussions and plans.

          3                 As such, it is a vital addition to

          4  the work of the advisory board.

          5                 In conclusion, the City of New York

          6  has an overarching obligation to protect the health

          7  and well-being of all its residents fairly and

          8  equitably.

          9                 WE ACT is advocating for the

         10  improvement of this exciting process by

         11  incorporating environmental quality and social

         12  justice for the benefit of the environment and

         13  community residents alike.

         14                 Community justice -- community

         15  planning that provides a mix of environmental

         16  economic, social, cultural opportunities contributes

         17  to community livability, sustainability and

         18  solidifies the community's commitment to creating

         19  desirable places to live, work and invest.

         20                 WE ACT would like to thank you for

         21  the opportunity to comment on this issue. And,

         22  again, we would like to commend the New York City

         23  Council for its tireless effort on environmental

         24  issues.

         25                 We must be proactive to ensure that
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          2  the City's sustainability plan addresses not only

          3  the environmental concerns, but also the public

          4  concerns and public health concerns for communities

          5  of color and low-income communities.

          6                 We stand ready to assist the

          7  committee in this important process. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          9  you. That's Ms. Hoang? Am I saying that right,

         10  Hoang? Okay. And Ms. Kizzy Charles-Guzman. Yes, as

         11  we crafted 395, we wanted to make sure that we

         12  represented appropriately the need for a robust EJ

         13  prospective on this and I'm very heartened and

         14  gratified that the Mayor and his folks has appointed

         15  Peggy, you know, to be on the Advisory Committee.

         16  Yes, and also Elizabeth Jon-Pierre, and I'm sure

         17  that Peggy and Elizabeth will advocate very well on

         18  behalf of the EJ community. We know that WE ACT is

         19  there for the long haul and we greatly appreciate

         20  your intense involvement in this initiative.

         21                 Thank you. Thank you. Mr. Weinstein,

         22  yes, to me it's kind of an open question how the

         23  issue of sustainability as they relate to waste will

         24  be sort of taken up by the advisory committee. I'm

         25  just thinking out loud, there may be some thinking
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          2  that because we have this, we already have a waste

          3  planning apparatus flying down the tracks already

          4  with the Department of Sanitation and the Council's

          5  own Committee on Solid Waste Management on which I

          6  serve. I know that we mentioned it, that we have it

          7  as part of 395, and I think one of the reasons for

          8  going forward with 395 is that it would crystalize

          9  the issue of waste legislatively in law for

         10  perpetuity, which I understand is a long time.

         11                 So, I agree with you. I agree with

         12  you. And, Bob, I want to thank you for your

         13  thoughtful comments on C02. You know, clearly this

         14  is the big one, and we got to do it, we got to do it

         15  right, we got to do it soon.

         16                 So, I know there is going to be an

         17  attempt to sort of to do all this quantification of

         18  C02, but at some point we've got to study it, and

         19  also act on it, so I'm glad to see that Sierra Club

         20  is in our corner on this and we appreciate you being

         21  here today. And Gavin, I am just impressed by the

         22  second page of your testimony, which there are some

         23  very, very thoughtful insights into how, you know,

         24  395, already a great bill, can be made even better,

         25  and we thank the New York Lawyers for coming
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          2  forward, and I agree with you on this.

          3                 So, thank you all very much for being

          4  here today, and we'll, you know, be in constant

          5  touch as we continue with this issue as it plays out

          6  over the next weeks and months.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 And the last panel, my good friend

          9  Marc Brammer of New York Climate Rescue. My

         10  prediction that Marc is going to talk about C02.

         11  That's my prediction. And Allison Farina, New

         12  Yorkers for Parks, and Carey Pulverman, Lower East

         13  Side Ecology Center. Anyone else who has submitted a

         14  slip and wishing to be heard, now would be the time

         15  to come forward.

         16                 You're a great American, Marc. You've

         17  really done wonderful things for this Committee. You

         18  are the high priest of C02. I mean that in truly an

         19  affectionate way. You've been such a great beacon on

         20  this issue.

         21                 So, what we'll do is, Donna will

         22  swear you in and then we'll hear from Marc, my

         23  buddy, first. Then we'll go to the right. I want to

         24  thank everyone on this panel for being here with us

         25  today.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          3  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

          4  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          5  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          6                 (Witnesses sworn.)

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Marc, please

          9  proceed for the record, and proceed with your

         10  testimony.

         11                 MR. BRAMMER: Yes, Councilman Gennaro,

         12  members of the Committee, I appreciate your time and

         13  the opportunity to testify. I'm going to be really

         14  quick because most of the points I wanted to hit

         15  were hit by previous people, so I'll just move

         16  through them rather quickly.

         17                 Obviously, we are in support of the

         18  bill, so I think we should go forward. I'd like to

         19  emphasize two things: One, Bob Muldoon had mentioned

         20  Dr. James Hansen's comment about how we have a

         21  decade.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         23                 MR. BRAMMER: And I think the earlier

         24  comments by -- I'm sorry, I'm forgetting the

         25  gentleman's name who is ahead of the Sustainability
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          2  Committee by the Mayor?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Rohit.

          4                 MR. BRAMMER: Rohit, saying that we

          5  should wait on setting goals until the process moves

          6  forward, and there's ample expertise I think to set

          7  some goals on a lot of these issues, especially with

          8  respect to things like C02, greenhouse gas emissions

          9  have really been discussed in depth. So, I would

         10  encourage the Committee and the Council to move

         11  forward and at least start setting some goals there,

         12  and the office can take them up as legally binding

         13  targets.

         14                 So, to move on quickly --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Marc.

         16  Thank you, Marc.

         17                 I just want to say for the record

         18  today that I didn't have Marc say that. You know,

         19  that was completely voluntary statement on his part.

         20                 MR. BRAMMER: It was indeed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Like no

         22  strategery involved in setting up that comment.

         23                 MR. BRAMMER: No strategery indeed. I

         24  did notice it in the Mayor's press release, he

         25  talked about the components of the plan, including
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          2  not only undertaking a major greenhouse gas

          3  inventory for the City government, but for the City

          4  as well. And as, you know, we've talked about that

          5  together, and I would urge the Committee, the

          6  Environmental Protection Committee, to revisit that

          7  and start bringing up some suggestions to the City,

          8  to the Mayor's Office now, about, okay, well, if you

          9  want to move beyond the City government, here is

         10  what we can do specifically and look at different

         11  aspects of buildings, transportation, et cetera, and

         12  start giving them some ideas of how that might

         13  actually be implemented and what we could do. I

         14  would be very interested in that.

         15                 So, the final aspect, I really just

         16  want to talk on the two issues that I think I would

         17  just like to raise a few about the bill.

         18                 Number one, which was already touched

         19  on, provisions for enforcement. I think that's a

         20  good point, but I think that's an easily added

         21  clause.

         22                 And the most important and sort of

         23  the central part of my testimony is really about

         24  having an auditing function. And this testimony is

         25  kind of, I wanted to give you a very graphic example
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          2  of that.

          3                 My day job in my life for the past

          4  decade is really rating companies on environmental

          5  management. So, I look at something, what

          6  corporations in the private sector are doing in

          7  exact replication of what the City is trying to do

          8  now.

          9                 And I can tell you that unless there

         10  is third-party auditing of the data, they're not

         11  going to get it right. And the example I would use

         12  is Honda Motor, and I picked them for a couple of

         13  reasons:

         14                 One, they're the most advanced auto

         15  manufacturer on the planet when it comes to

         16  environmental management of their own facilities.

         17  They beat Toyota, and I should stipulate I'm the

         18  auto analyst for a company called NMS (phonetic), so

         19  I look at this stuff in depth.

         20                 So, they put out estimated numbers,

         21  and even with all of their internal expertise, even

         22  with -- and those numbers come from this report,

         23  which is probably read by 600,000, if not a million

         24  people worldwide, so there is a lot of scrutiny to a

         25  report like this, and it's very similar to what the
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          2  City would put out.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What is the

          4  report? What is the report? This is the Hot

          5  Environmental Annual Report. This is a

          6  sustainability plan for the company as a whole. I

          7  mean, looking at products, et cetera, et cetera. And

          8  they put out data on let's say things like the City

          9  would put out, greenhouse gas emissions.

         10                 I went and looked at those numbers,

         11  and I audited them, and I said, well, you know, they

         12  made a pretty basic mistake, which was they said

         13  they made the greenhouse gas emissions or energy use

         14  equivalent from the US to China to Japan. Those

         15  things aren't true. So, if you look at the back,

         16  just in the corner, you can see that in the red

         17  square, that's the number that I came up with, and

         18  it's twice as big as the number that Honda reported.

         19                 I went back to Honda and said, hey,

         20  guys, I think you screwed up on your numbers, and

         21  they said, oh, yeah, oops, sorry about that, we used

         22  the wrong co-efficients here.

         23                 So, it just goes to show you that

         24  even if you have the intent, you have a lot of

         25  scrutiny and you have a lot of internal expertise to
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          2  do this kind of thing, you can still make some

          3  mistakes, and I think the goal here is that we

          4  should be producing not just a report that shows

          5  progress but actual progress. So, I think I would

          6  really encourage 395 to include and identify maybe a

          7  third party independent group, I don't know who that

          8  would be, who the appropriate person that would be,

          9  whether, you know, my question to you actually is if

         10  you had a suggested legislative body that does that

         11  kind of thing for other aspects of City government,

         12  audit the numbers, have continual access to whatever

         13  the goals and the metrics are that the

         14  sustainability office is using, and be able to kind

         15  of have real time auditing for that, so that we can

         16  have confidence in numbers.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you, Marc. I appreciate that.

         19                 MR. BRAMMER: With that I close and I

         20  pass it on.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Marc.

         22                 Allison, right?

         23                 MS. FARINA: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         25                 MS. FARINA: Good afternoon, Chairman
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          2  Gennaro. And my name is Allison Farina, I'm the

          3  Counsel and Director of Government Relations at New

          4  Yorkers for Parks, the only independent watchdog for

          5  all the City's parks, beaches, playgrounds, and in

          6  the interest of time I'll just jump to the

          7  recommendations that we have.

          8                 New Yorkers for Parks is very

          9  supportive of the aims of Intro. 395, and make the

         10  following suggestions and considerations in order to

         11  strengthen the effectiveness of the bill.

         12                 One, the Environmental Sustainability

         13  Action Plan should contain language that describes

         14  how its programs and policies will be adhered to by

         15  both the public and private sectors.

         16                 Two, the plan should also include a

         17  description of how projects going through the City's

         18  land use review procedure will be evaluated

         19  vis-a-vis the environmental sustainability action

         20  plan.

         21                 For example, what incentives will

         22  developers, including government agencies have to

         23  build according to principles of environmental

         24  sustainability, will there be penalties, for

         25  example, for non-compliance.
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          2                 Three, given that definition of

          3  sustainability, given that the definition of

          4  sustainability can be left to interpretation and

          5  given the rapid advances in green technologies, what

          6  is the mechanism for evaluating whether or not a

          7  project is truly sustainable.

          8                 And then, finally, the City Council

          9  should also consider what penalties or other action

         10  would result in the event that the City does not

         11  meet its five, ten, 20-year targets for

         12  sustainability indicators.

         13                 We look forward to working with the

         14  City and City Council to promote quality open space

         15  for all New Yorkers as a fundamental component of

         16  sustainable economic and social development.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you, Allison.

         20                 Ms. Pulverman, right? Okay. Lower

         21  East Side Ecology Center. Oh, we have your

         22  statement. Great. Okay, thank you.

         23                 MS. PULVERMAN: Good afternoon,

         24  Council Member Gennaro and the rest of the

         25  Committee. Thank you for the opportunity to speak
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          2  here today.

          3                 The Lower East Side Ecology Center

          4  commends the Council's leadership in planning for a

          5  sustainable future for our City.

          6                 We urge the Council to be ambitious

          7  in its goals on sustainability, and offer the

          8  following comments on the creation of a truly

          9  comprehensive environmental sustainability action

         10  plan for the City of New York.

         11                 First, that we find the Council's

         12  definition of environmental sustainability as a

         13  state in which human priorities of social and

         14  economic development do not conflict with the

         15  protection and functioning of the natural

         16  environment initially disappointing. Well accepted

         17  language from as far back as the 1995 world summit

         18  on social development, defines sustainable

         19  development as the framework to achieve a higher

         20  quality of life for all people in which economic

         21  development, social development and environmental

         22  protection are interdependent and mutually

         23  reinforcing components.

         24                 The point at which social, economic

         25  and environmental priorities cease to merely
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          2  tolerate one another and actually engage in a

          3  synergistic cooperation flies at the very heart of

          4  sustainability and we feel it is important for our

          5  goals to follow commonly-accepted characterizations

          6  of sustainability.

          7                 The planning process outlined in this

          8  proposed local law to be carried out by an appointed

          9  planner assisted by a small appointed advisory

         10  committee lacks the broad base of community academic

         11  professional and agency input that will be necessary

         12  to identify and incorporate the important

         13  sustainability work that is already going on in this

         14  City as we sit here today.

         15                 As a leader in local solid waste

         16  management, open space stewardship and public

         17  environmental education issues, and as a member of

         18  the planning center at the Municipal Art Society

         19  Task Force on Community-Based Planning, the Ecology

         20  Center strongly urges the Council to support a

         21  transparent community-based planning process, and

         22  not set itself back by abandoning accomplishments

         23  already made at the grassroots level.

         24                 A truly comprehensive environmental

         25  sustainability action plan for the City of New York
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          2  will integrate in a meaningful way input from

          3  organizations and experts on sustainability

          4  throughout our community, including academia, the

          5  non-profit sector, government and professional

          6  worlds, as well as international resources such as

          7  the Commission on Sustainable Development available

          8  in our own back yard at the UN.

          9                 Support equal opportunity and

         10  community participation through a well-defined role

         11  for community boards, moving beyond providing public

         12  notification of meetings towards becoming more

         13  responsible for accurately representing their

         14  constituencies.

         15                 Include a framework for the

         16  integration of environmental, social and economic

         17  goals in policies and activities. Clearly,

         18  coordination is needed between the Mayor's Office

         19  and the Council, but also among City agencies,

         20  public/private partnerships and in relation to

         21  existing land use plans.

         22                 At the Ecology Center we consider it

         23  part of our mission to support sustainability

         24  initiatives in our City and we remain available as a

         25  resource and ally to the Council on sustainability
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          2  issues.

          3                 Thank you, again, for this

          4  opportunity to give our input.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Ms. Pulverman. Thank you for your thoughtful

          7  testimony and you point out that the way we define,

          8  the way we define environmental sustainability,

          9  that's something that I'm sure the advisory

         10  committee will look at, as well as us. So, thank you

         11  very much for your input. We appreciate having you

         12  before the Committee.

         13                 You're located in Council Mendez's

         14  district? Is that where the Lower East Side.

         15                 MS. PULVERMAN: I'm not exactly sure

         16  it's in East River Park, like straight across from

         17  Delancey Street, all the way east.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. It may be

         19  Alan Gerson. My Council District geography is not

         20  terrific, but I think it's Alan Gerson.

         21                 Thank you very much for your

         22  testimony. We do appreciate it. And Alison, thank

         23  you for your recommendations. And we agree, there

         24  should be not only carrots but sticks, okay? We

         25  should have sticks. Good. Good for you. Good for

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  you. You know, because talking about penalties.

          3  Penalties.

          4                 And I also want to, a completely

          5  unrelated topic, which I can give myself a little

          6  latitude as Chairman, a park in my district, Willow

          7  Lake, Willow Lake, and there's a lot of interest of

          8  late in the whole Willow Lake.

          9                 MS. FARINA: Yes, and I understand you

         10  worked hard with DOT to get that --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. And I

         12  want to formally, you know, solicit you here,

         13  publicly, you know, on the record, for your

         14  involvement in sort of like the Willow Lake question

         15  and how we go forward and make that space into

         16  everything that it can be.

         17                 So, you know, I want to work with New

         18  Yorkers for Parks on that. It's part of the mix. So,

         19  keep us honest on that, because we're working with

         20  the Parks Department and it's the Parks Department,

         21  it's DOT, it's, you know, community groups, it's

         22  full-time public access, is it limited, is it

         23  whatever, but, you know, we have to move forward on

         24  Willow Lake, and I'd be very grateful for the

         25  involvement of New Yorkers for Parks. I just want to
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          2  say that in a public way.

          3                 MS. FARINA: Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And so we

          5  appreciate that.

          6                 And Marc, what can I say? As we go

          7  forward on all of the, you know, carbon stuff, I

          8  want you in close contact with my staff to make sure

          9  that all of our movements on that issue have the

         10  benefit of your input. As you know, I'll be serving

         11  on the advisory committee.

         12                 MR. BRAMMER: Yes, I saw that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, we've

         14  already got Intro. 20, of course, as you well know,

         15  it's all written, ready to go. But we are going to

         16  be angling to move that, you know, sooner rather

         17  than later, and anyone that can help bring pressure

         18  to bear for the imperative that we move sooner

         19  rather than later, folks like yourself.

         20                 So, we'll be in touch with you on

         21  that, on that issue, because we really want to go

         22  with that.

         23                 MR. BRAMMER: One follow-up, if I may?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         25                 MR. BRAMMER: Because I realize the
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          2  auto function I mentioned for this is kind of

          3  equivalent to what it would -- it would apply to

          4  Intro. 20, and I was wondering, is there an agency I

          5  should have in mind, at least to be thinking about?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I mean,

          7  theoretically --

          8                 MR. BRAMMER: Public Advocate.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Theoretically

         10  the Council has oversight function and so we are the

         11  overseer of the Executive.

         12                 This is, I think a conversation that

         13  perhaps we'll just have after the hearing, but

         14  suffice it to say that you're quest for this

         15  auditing function and for real precision in all that

         16  we do is duly noted and we should figure out a way

         17  to do that.

         18                 MR. BRAMMER: Well, I'm angling for a

         19  job at the IRS, so...

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, okay.

         21                 MR. BRAMMER: Just kidding.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please don't

         23  look me up on the tax computer.

         24                 MR. BRAMMER: You'll get a pass.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.
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          2                 And with that said, I'd like to thank

          3  everyone for their participation, and this hearing

          4  is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:50 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 26th day of September 2006.
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